
CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2014 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order by Chairperson.   
 

2. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on         
March 27, 2014 (PAGE 1) 

 
3. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 

 
4. REORGANIZATION OF GOVERNING BODY: 

A. Nomination and election of Mayor 
B. Nomination and election of Vice-Mayor 

 
5. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items). 

 
6. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless 

objections are raised).   
 

A. City Commission Rules of Procedure: Resolution No. 2014-005 (PAGE 11) 
 

B. Mayoral Appointment Recommendations: CARE Council, Hays Housing Authority 
Board, Hays Public Library Board, and Sister Cities Advisory Board (PAGE 25) 

 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

7. VEHICLE ABATEMENT – 510 WEST 23RD STREET: Consider approving Resolution No. 
2014-006 allowing for the abatement of the vehicles located on the property at              
510 West 23rd Street. (PAGE 39) 
 

8. VEHICLE ABATEMENT – 1309 DONALD DRIVE: Consider approving Resolution No. 
2014-007 allowing for the abatement of the vehicle located on the property at 1309 
Donald. (PAGE 49) 
 

9. VEHICLE ABATEMENT – 1812 EAST 27TH STREET: Consider approving Resolution 
No. 2014-008 allowing for the abatement of the vehicle located on the property at               
1812 East 27th Street. (PAGE 59) 
 

10. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ZONING REGULATION REWRITE CONSULTANT: 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter a contract with Kendig Keast 
Collaborative for the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations rewrite. (PAGE 67) 
 



11. EPA FINE FOR EXCEEDING WASTEWATER TREATMENT PERMIT LIMITS: Authorize 
the payment of the fine to the EPA to be paid out of the Water/Sewer Contingency 
account. (PAGE 125) 
 

12. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER (PAGE 143) 
 

13. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS   
 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED) 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



 

MINUTES OF A MEETING 

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON MARCH 27, 2014 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays, 

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. 

  Roll Call:  Present:  Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

 Chairperson Steward declared that a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order. 

2.  MINUTES:  There were no corrections or additions to the minutes of the 

regular session held on March 13, 2014; the minutes stand approved as 

presented. 

3.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT:  Finance Director Kim Rupp reported that month-

to-date general fund sales tax collections were at $693,745 which is an increase 

of $6,429 as compared to last year. This puts the YTD general fund sales tax 

collections down -$32,154 or -2.44%. 

The Finance/City Clerk’s Office invested $1,750,000 of maturing or 

renewing certificates with a weighted average interest rate of .19%. The portfolio 

of certificates of deposit on February 28, 2014 totaled $53,550,000 with a 

weighted average interest rate of .23%. The total balance of the Money Market 

account on February 28, 2014 was $1,000,000 with a current yield of .20%. Total 

investments are up $1,700,000 when compared to this time last year. 

One other significant event to note from this February was the retirement 

of the Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Loan for the Waste Water 

Treatment Plant. This was a loan started in September 1994 in the amount of 

1



$5.5M. Payments were $399,392 annually at an interest rate of 3.99%. The bulk 

of the loan was for upgrades required by KDHE at the time. 

Ron Mellick moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, that the Financial 

Statement for the month of February, 2014 be approved. 

   Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

4.  CITIZEN COMMENTS:  There were no comments 

5. CONSENT AGENDA:  There were no items on the consent agenda.   

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

    

 

6.  RFP FOR BROKER AND RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES:  The current 

contract with Insurance Planning for Broker and Risk Management Services will 

expire on May 1, 2014.  Request for proposals were mailed to seven potential 

providers with two responsive and responsible bids received. The incumbent bid 

$23,500 and Arthur J Gallagher Risk Management Services bid $20,000. After 

careful consideration, due diligence, reference checks and clarification of the 

provider’s core services, city staff is recommending to accept the bid from Arthur 

J Gallagher. 

 Tanner Burns Area Vice President of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. and Rich 

Kraemer VP Account Executive for Insurance Planning spoke to the 

Commissioners about their proposals.   

Ron Mellick moved, Eber Phelps seconded, to accept the bid from Arthur 

J Gallagher in the amount of $20,000 per year for a five year annual renewal 

term for Broker and Risk Management Services to be funded from the 

Intergovernmental Fund. 

2



Commissioner Musil stated he would be voting no, he does not like our 

current policy and believes the local company should be used. 

Commissioner Phelps stated we should stick with our current policy and 

not deviate from it, to keep the integrity of the bid process. 

Commissioner Schwaller commented that this is a difficult decision 

because we have had a good relationship with Insurance Planning. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

     Eber Phelps 

     Ron Mellick 

        No: Shaun Musil 

     Abstention: Henry Schwaller IV 

7.  BICKLE-SCHMIDT SPORTS COMPLEX ADDENDUM TO THE 

AGREEMENT FOR COMMUNICATION SERVICES:  Nex-Tech holds the 

naming rights for communication services at the Bickle-Schmidt Sports Complex.  

These services include internet, telephone and other marketing benefits.  As part 

of the naming rights package, Nex-Tech agreed to provide a website and 

services for the facility.     

Nex-Tech can no longer provide the website services.  To uphold their 

agreement they are asking for an addendum to have The News Publishing 

Company (Hays Daily News) fulfill website requirements as outlined.  Though the 

agreement is with the City, the Hays Recreation Commission utilizes this service 

to promote the facility.  

Nex-Tech Chief Operating Officer of Competitive Services, Mike Pollock 

commented that the visitors of the web site will see no changes.  The support 

and future customization of the site will be provided by Hays Daily News. 

Shaun Musil moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, to approve the 

Addendum to the Agreement for Communication Services at the Bickle-Schmidt 

Sports Complex. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

3



     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

8.  OVERLAND PROPERTY GROUP, LLC – RESOLUTION OF 

SUPPORT:  Overland Property Group, LLC is pursuing tax credits to help 

finance the construction of additional apartments in Hays.  Their proposal is for 

the development of rental housing to be located on East 22nd Street, directly 

south of Hays Medical Center.  The request is for the development of two 

buildings (each containing either 16 units, 32 units total or each would contain 24 

units, 48 units total) and a club house.  The proposed development will resemble 

the structure of the current Stonepost Apartments.  As part of the tax credit 

process, Overland Property Group is asking for a Resolution of Support from the 

City of Hays.  Overland Properties Group has asked for, and been granted, 

similar resolutions in the past. 

Galen Romme with Romme Agency represented the Overland Property 

Group, LLC and discussed the request with the Commissioners. 

Eber Phelps moved, Shaun Musil seconded, to approve Resolution No. 

2014-004 in support of an affordable rental housing development south of East 

22nd Street proposed by Overland Property Group, LLC. 

Commissioner Schwaller stated he would vote for the Resolution of 

Support, but does not want to also give the company economic development 

incentives to build on the land. 

Commissioner Steward agreed that he would consider economic 

development incentives a double dip. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

9.  UPDATE TO MUNICIPAL WATER CONSERVATION PLAN/DROUGHT 

RESPONSE PLAN:  City staff has been working with the State of Kansas 

Division of Water Resources to include private wells in the regulatory actions of 

4



the warning and emergency stages of the Drought Response Plan. While 

inserting the private well language in the Drought Response Plan, City staff took 

the opportunity to make a couple of small revisions to the plan itself.  Changes 

from the existing plan are: 

 Private well compliance with regulations in warning and emergency 

stages; 

 No newly seeded/sodded lawn permits during warning stage; 

 Second conservation tier rates identified in warning and emergency 

stages; 

 Power of City Commission to adopt additional emergency water rates 

identified in emergency stage. 

Ron Mellick moved, Eber Phelps seconded, to approve the updated 

Municipal Water Conservation Plan/Drought Response Plan for the City of Hays. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

10.  DROUGHT RESPONSE PLAN PRIVATE WELL REQUIREMENTS:  The 

purpose of this ordinance is to provide for a progressive water supply 

conservation program, including the declaration of a water watch, water warning 

or water emergency and the implementation of voluntary and mandatory water 

conservation measures throughout the City, including regulation of private well 

water use, in the event such a watch, warning, or emergency is declared by the 

governing body. The Kansas Water Office suggested this method to allow legal 

control of the numerous private wells on our same source of water. Ellis and 

Salina have similar ordinances enacted. 

 Shaun Musil moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, to approve Ordinance 

No. 3881 in regard to the Drought Response Plan private well requirements. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

5



     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

11.  LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION REGULATIONS:  In an effort to control the 

amount of water used in new irrigation systems, staff has worked with the 

Planning Commission to develop regulations governing the amount of irrigated 

area, the location of sprinkler heads on properties, and the types of vegetation 

allowed to be irrigated on a given property.  The main changes recommended 

are caps on the total amount of irrigated areas on properties with specific 

limitations on the most water-hungry landscaping.  Staff is recommending 

adoption of these changes to landscaping standards in Chapter 71 of the Code of 

Ordinances. 

Shaun Musil moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to approve Ordinance No. 

3882 adopting the changes to landscape regulations as recommended by the 

Hays Area Planning Commission. 

Commissioner Schwaller stated these changes are very important and 

long overdue. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

12.  IAPMO 2012 GREEN PLUMBING & MECHANICAL CODE SUPPLEMENT: 

City staff is recommending adoption of portions of the International 

Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials 2012 Green Plumbing & 

Mechanical Code Supplement. Adoption of this code will mean, in general, that 

all water using fixtures in new construction and remodels must be at least 20% 

more efficient than federal standards and also places restrictions on water uses 

where there are no state, federal or local rules; for example, car washes and 

industrial cooling systems.   

6



At the March 20, 2014 work session, City Commissioners wished to look 

at an adoption of the Green Code with an exemption for residential remodels 

regarding the volume of water in hot water lines between the furthest fixture and 

hot water heater.  An ordinance carving out this exemption has been added for 

consideration. 

Shaun Musil moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, to approve Ordinance 

No. 3883 adopting portions of the IAPMO 2012 Green Plumbing & Mechanical 

Code in the version recommended by staff and the Building & Trades Board. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

13.  RECOMMENDED CHANGES FOR COMMERCIAL IRRIGATION:  In 2013, 

the City Commissioners adopted a second conservation pricing tier for water at 

residential properties.  Due to a wide number of variations in how water is used 

at commercial properties, a similar change was not adopted concurrently for 

commercial properties.  Staff explored the issue of outdoor water usage at 

commercial properties and is making the following recommendations: 

 Require all new business customers with permanent irrigation systems to 

install dedicated irrigation meters. 

 Change how multi-family properties are billed to a manner more consistent 

with their residential use. 

 Create a new commercial rate structure (second conservation tier) 

applicable only to those properties irrigating with potable water that do not 

have a separate irrigation meter.  Customers wishing to not be under the 

new tier can opt to install, at their cost, a dedicated irrigation meter.  While 

water warning status prohibits the connection of new irrigation systems to 

the potable water supply, these customers will be allowed to install 

irrigation meters as no new irrigated area is being added.  

7



Henry Schwaller IV moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to approve Ordinance 

No. 3884 adopting the changes to commercial irrigation service rules and rates. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

14.  SEWER SERVICE DEFINITION CHANGES:  While staff was exploring 

changes to service rules and rates for outdoor irrigation at commercial properties, 

a lack of clarity regarding what constitutes a business user was found.  This is a 

housekeeping change with no impact on how customers are being billed for 

sewer services and is being made through a separate ordinance per the 

recommendation of the City Attorney. 

Henry Schwaller IV moved, Ron Mellick seconded, to approve Ordinance 

No. 3885 adopting the changes to sewer service definitions. 

Vote: Ayes: Kent Steward 

Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

15.  PROGRESS REPORT:  Assistant City Manager Paul Briseno reported on 

various city related events, activities, and projects. 

16.  REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Toby Dougherty stated 

in 2011 he attended a water conference and realized we were behind the times 

in the area of water conservation compared to other arid areas.  He stated that 

staff has worked hard to bring forward these recommendations for water 

conservation and he commended the Commissioners for the difficult decisions 

they have had to make regarding these changes. 

17.  COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS:  Commissioner Musil 

commented that he had the opportunity to help Stacie Minson, Watershed 

8



Specialist, make 89 rain barrels and he encouraged citizens to get them as they 

are in short supply. 

Commissioner Phelps stated that the Water Wise Program is excellent 

and complimented Nick Willis, Interim Assistant Director of Utilities and Stacie 

Minson, Water Shed Specialist on the good job they did at the program. 

 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 

 

 Submitted by: _______________________________________________  

     Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

 

 

9



 

10



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

              COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A                MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
City Commission Rules of Procedure 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider approving Resolution No. 2014-005 adopting the City of Hays City Commission 
Rules of Procedure and repealing all previous resolutions, motions, or actions in conflict 
therewith. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The 2013 Rules of Procedure was reviewed at the April 3rd Work Session, and no changes 
were requested.  
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
City Commission 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
None 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 2014-005 
City Commission Rules of Procedure 
 
 

 

11



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-005 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE CITY OF 
HAYS CITY COMMISSION RULES OF PROCEDURE AND 
REPEALING ALL PREVIOUS RESOLUTIONS, MOTIONS 
OR ACTIONS IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Hays City Commission Rules of Procedure contains a full and 
complete set of rules, regulations, standards, and procedures which govern the proceedings of the 
Commission; and, 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the governing body of the City of Hays to adopt the provisions 
of the City of Hays City Commission Rules of Procedure, to apply in all of its affairs;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF HAYS, KANSAS: 
 

A. That the City of Hays City Commission Rules of Procedure, as attached hereto and as 
may be amended from time to time, is hereby adopted by the City of Hays, Kansas. 

 
B. That it shall be the policy of the City of Hays, Kansas, to abide by and conform to in 

all respects the provisions of the aforesaid City of Hays City Commission Rules of 
Procedure. 

 
C. That the City Clerk of the City of Hays, Kansas, shall maintain a copy of the City of 

Hays City Commission Rules of Procedure, and of this Resolution in the Office of 
the City Clerk, and shall make same available to any interested citizen. 

 
D. That all previous resolutions, motions or actions in conflict with the City of Hays 

City Commission Rules of Procedure are hereby repealed. 
 

This resolution shall be effective upon its approval by the City Commission of the City of 
Hays, Kansas. 
 

Adopted by the Commission on the 10th day of April, 2014. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(SEAL)  

12



 
Page 1 of 11 

 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF HAYS 
 

CITY COMMISSION 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

               Page No. 

1. Rules of Procedure – Generally     2 

2. Meetings, Quorum, Attendance, Rules of Order  2 

3. Types of Meetings      3 

4. Mayor and Duties      5 

5. Order of Business and Agenda    7 

6. Ordinances, Resolutions, and Motions            10 

7. Citizens' Rights               10 

8. Suspension and Amendment of These Rules           11 

 

 

Adopted this 10th day of April, 2014, by the City Commission at a regular 

meeting, by a majority vote of the members attending. 

13



 
Page 2 of 11 

1. Rules of Procedure - Generally 

1.1.   Authority:  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Hays provides that 

the City Commission shall determine its own rules of procedure.   

1.2.   Adoption of Rules:  The following set of Rules of Procedure shall be in 

effect upon their adoption by the Commission. 

1.3.   Rules - New Commission: Each year, at the first regular meeting of the 

City Commission in April, or at the first meeting following the canvassing and 

certification of the election votes by the Ellis County Clerk and Ellis County 

Commission, the Commission shall immediately, following the election of the 

Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of Commission, as provided in Sec. 4.1, adopt 

Rules of Procedure, either by adopting the prior Commission's Rules (with or without 

amendments) or by adopting new rules. 

1.4.   Rules of Order:  These Rules of Procedure shall govern the 

proceedings of the Commission, and "Robert's Rules of Order Revised" shall govern 

those matters that these Rules of Procedure do not govern. 

 

2.   Meetings, Quorum, Attendance, Rules of Order: 

2.1.   Meetings to be Public:  All meetings of the Commission shall be open 

to the public as per the Kansas Open Records Act, subject to the exemptions 

therein. 

2.2.   Quorum:  A majority of the members of Commission, three (3), shall 

constitute a quorum.  If a quorum is not present, those in attendance shall be listed 

and they shall adjourn to a later time. 

 

14



 
Page 3 of 11 

2.3.   Business Vote:  All ordinances shall require the affirmative vote of the 

majority of the five (5) commission members. 

2.4.   Compelling Attendance:  The Commission may adjourn from day to 

day to compel the attendance of absent members. 

2.5.   Right of Floor:  Any member desiring to speak shall be recognized by 

the chair, and shall confine his/her remarks to one subject under consideration or to 

be considered. 

   

3.   Types of Meetings 

3.1.   Regular Meetings:  The Commission shall meet in the Commission 

Chambers of City Hall on the second and fourth Thursdays of each month at a time 

specified by resolution.  Should the regular meeting date be a holiday, the Board of 

Commissioners shall meet on the Tuesday preceding the holiday at the regular hour. 

 Calls for regular meetings other than as provided above herein shall be in accord 

with Hays City Code Sec. 2.04.120.   

3.2.   Special Meetings:  Special meetings shall be called and held pursuant 

to Hays City Code Sec. 2.04.130. 

3.3.   Work Sessions:  The Commission may meet informally in work 

sessions (open to the public), generally to be held on the first and third Thursday at 

a time to be announced at the meeting preceding each meeting in the Commission 

Chambers to review forthcoming programs of the City, receive progress reports on 

current programs or projects, or receive other similar information from the City 

Manager and staff, provided that all discussions thereon shall be informal and no 

formal action shall be taken at any such session. 

15



 
Page 4 of 11 

3.4.   Regular and Special Meetings and Work Sessions: Notices of all 

meetings and work sessions shall be posted at City Hall, showing place, date and 

time of meeting or session, as well as an agenda for such meeting or session, and 

further disseminated according to the requirements of the Kansas Open Meetings 

Act. 

3.5.   Executive Sessions:  Executive Sessions or closed meetings may be 

held in accordance with the provisions of the Kansas Open Meetings Act. 

3.6.   Adjourned Meetings:  Any meeting of the Commission may be 

adjourned to a later date and time, provided that no adjournment shall be for a 

longer period than until the next regular meeting. 

3.7.   Emergency Meetings: Emergency meetings, necessitated by national, 

statewide or local catastrophe, riot, or insurrection, requiring immediate action for 

which the Commission may need to act immediately, shall be called by available 

Commission members, who may act by emergency declaration, with or without a 

quorum, and by the majority of as many Commission members as are present, to 

take only such actions as are necessary to restore the public welfare and peace to 

its more normal state.  This rule shall prevail only until such time as Commission 

passes an ordinance to deal with such extraordinary circumstances.  As a part of the 

emergency declaration, such Commission members as are present may by majority 

vote of those present suspend all or any portion of the within rules for such 

emergency meeting. 

 

 

 

16



 
Page 5 of 11 

4.   Mayor and Duties 

4.1.   Election of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem:  At the first regular meeting of 

the City Commission in April of each year, or at the first meeting following the 

canvassing and certification of the election votes by the Ellis County Clerk and Ellis 

County Commission, a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be elected.  The 

Chairperson shall have the title of Mayor.  The Vice-Chairperson shall have the title 

of Vice-Mayor.  The meeting shall be called to order by the Mayor who shall accept 

nominations for the offices of Mayor and Vice-Mayor.  The election shall be by roll 

call vote or by open ballot in a contested election and it shall require a majority vote 

by the members of the Commission. 

4.2.   Chairperson / Mayor:  The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of 

the Commission.  In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall 

preside.  In the absence of both the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson, the City 

Manager shall call the Commission to order, whereupon the members of the 

Commission present shall elect a temporary chairman. 

4.3.   Call to Order:  The person presiding shall take the chair precisely at 

the hour appointed for the meeting and shall immediately call the Commission to 

order.  A temporary chairman shall serve as presiding officer of the Commission 

until the arrival of the Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson, at which time the temporary 

chairman shall immediately relinquish the chair upon the conclusion of the business 

immediately before the Commission. 

4.4.   Preservation of Order:  While the Commission is in session, the 

members must preserve order and decorum.  A member shall neither, by 

conversation or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings or the peace of the 

17



 
Page 6 of 11 

Commission nor disturb any member while speaking or refuse to obey the orders of 

the Commission or its presiding officer.  Media coverage may be provided so long as 

said coverage does not interfere with the orderly conduct of Commission meetings.  

Any person making personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks, or who shall 

become boisterous, while addressing the Commission may be requested to leave 

the meeting and may be forthwith, by the presiding officer, barred from further 

audience before the Commission. 

4.5.   Points of Order:  The person presiding shall determine all points of 

order, subject to the right of any member to appeal to the Commission.  If any 

appeal is taken, the question shall be, "Shall the decision of the presiding officer be 

sustained?" 

4.6.   Questions to be Stated:  The person presiding shall cause all 

questions to be stated, submitted to vote and announce all results.  A roll call vote 

shall be taken upon the request of any member in the manner provided in these 

rules. 

4.7. Appointment of Board, Commission, Committee and Authority 

Positions:  Prior to appointment of any board member, commission or committee 

member or authority member, the term for which or vacancy of which will occur 

before the expiration of the then-Mayor’s term, copies of any applications, letters of 

intent, or other indication of interest shall be provided to the Commission for review. 

At the regular meeting of the Commission preceding the meeting at which the 

appointment will be made, the Mayor shall make a recommendation for the 

Commission’s consideration.  At the next regular meeting, the Mayor shall make the 

appointment, subject to formal approval by the Commission.  If the appointee does 

18



 
Page 7 of 11 

not receive a majority vote of Commission, then any member of Commission may 

make a nomination for the position, subject to formal approval by the Commission. 

Such nomination shall be made from the applications, letters of intent or other 

indication of interest previously provided to the Commission.  The Commission by 

unanimous consent may waive the time limits for this procedure. 

 

5.   Order of Business and Agenda: 

5.1.   Order of Business:  All meetings of Commission, except executive 

sessions as outlined, shall be open to the public.  At the hour appointed for meeting, 

the Commission shall be called together by the Chairperson, and in his/her absence 

by the Vice-chairperson.  It shall be determined whether a quorum is present.  Upon 

the appearance of a quorum the board of commissioners shall proceed to business, 

which shall be conducted in the following order: 

1. Reading of the minutes of the last regular meeting and intervening 

special meetings, which, if no corrections are offered, shall stand 

approved; 

2. Presentation of financial statements; 

 3. Citizen comments; 

 4. Consent agenda; 

5. Unfinished business; 

6. New business; 

7. Report of city manager; 

8. Commission inquiries and comments; 

 

19



 
Page 8 of 11 

9. Executive session (if required); 

10. Adjournment. 

The foregoing order of business shall not, however, prohibit the introduction 

of any germane material or resolution by any member of the Commission under any 

appropriate heading of business hereinabove stated.  For good reason, the person 

presiding may alter the order of the agenda unless decided otherwise by majority 

vote of Commission quorum present. 

5.2.   Presentation by Members of Commission:  The agenda shall provide a 

time when the Chairperson or any Commission member may bring before the 

Commission any business that he/she feels should be deliberated upon by the 

Commission.  These matters need not be specifically listed on the agenda, but formal 

action on such matters shall be deferred until a subsequent Commission meeting, 

when they can appear on the agenda, except that immediate action may be taken 

upon a vote of two-thirds of all members of the Commission. 

5.3.   Reading of Minutes:  Unless a reading of the minutes of a Commission 

meeting is requested by a member of the Commission, such minutes may be 

approved without reading, if each member has been previously furnished with a copy 

of the minutes. 

5.4.   Rules of Debate: 

(a)   Presiding officer.  The person presiding may move, second and 

debate from the chair, subject only to such limitations of debate as are by these rules 

imposed on all members, and shall not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges 

of a Commission member by reason of his/her acting as the person presiding. 

 

20



 
Page 9 of 11 

(b)   Getting the floor.  Every member desiring to speak shall address 

the chair, and upon recognition by the presiding officer, shall confine himself/herself to 

the question under debate, avoiding all personalities and indecorous language. 

(c)   Interruptions.  A member, once recognized, shall not be 

interrupted when speaking unless it be to call him/her to order, or as herein otherwise 

provided.  If a member, while speaking, be called to order, he/she shall cease 

speaking until the question of order be determined, and if in order, he/she shall be 

permitted to proceed.  

(d) Introduction of ordinances and resolutions. Each ordinance or 

resolution shall be introduced and moved to be adopted as follows:  "I move the 

introduction and adoption of Ordinance No. ____ (or Resolution No. _____)." 

(e) Debate.  The Commission member moving the adoption of an 

ordinance or resolution shall have the privilege of opening debate after the motion for 

adoption of the ordinance or resolution, but shall not speak against same.  Such 

Commission member shall have the privilege of closing debate, by being invited by 

the presiding officer to speak last before vote is taken. 

(f)   Remarks entered in minutes.  A Commission member may 

request, through the presiding officer, the privilege of having an abstract of his/her 

statement on any subject under consideration by the Commission entered in the 

minutes. 

 

 

 

21



 
Page 10 of 11 

6.   Ordinances, Resolutions, and Motions 

6.1.   Form:  Ordinances and resolutions shall be presented to the 

Commission only in printed or typewritten form. 

6.2.   Voting:  Voting decides all questions ultimately. Yes or no vote shall be 

taken from each Commission member upon the consideration of passage of all 

motions, ordinances and resolutions and shall be entered upon the official record of 

the Commission. 

6.3.   Tie Vote:  In the event of a tie in votes on any motion, the motion shall 

be considered failed. 

 

7.   Citizens' Rights 

7.1.   Addressing the Commission:  Any person desiring to address the 

Commission by oral communication shall first secure the permission of the presiding 

officer, provided, however, that preference will be given to those persons who have 

notified the City Manager by noon of the Friday immediately preceding the Thursday 

Commission meeting of their desire to speak in order that their name may be placed 

on the agenda and they will be recognized by the presiding officer without further 

action. 

7.2. Manner of Addressing the Commission:  Each person addressing the 

Commission shall step up to the microphone, shall give his/her name and address in 

an audible tone of voice for the record and, by prior determination, and, on a case-by-

case basis, time limits may be imposed by the presiding officer. All remarks shall be 

addressed to the Commission as a body, and not to any member thereof.  No person, 

22



 
Page 11 of 11 

other than members of the Commission and the person having the floor, shall be 

permitted to enter into any discussion, except by the authority of the presiding officer. 

7.3. Courtesy Requirements:  As a courtesy to all who use the City 

Commission Chambers, the City Commission shall require that everyone: 

1. Remove hats, caps and sunglasses. 

2. Refrain from chewing gum or tobacco and eating. 

3. Refrain from smoking. 

4. Turn off all cell phones and pagers. 

 

8.   Suspension and Amendment of these Rules 

8.1.   Suspension of these Rules:  Any provision of these rules not governed 

by the City Code of Ordinances, City Code, state statutes or general state law may be 

temporarily suspended by a vote of a majority of the Commission.  The vote on any 

such suspension shall be taken by a roll call vote and entered upon the record. 

8.2.   Amendment of these Rules:  These rules may be amended, or new 

rules adopted, by a majority vote of all members of the Commission, provided that the 

proposed amendments or new rules shall have been placed on the agenda and 

provided to all Commission members prior to the Commission meeting at which action 

is taken on the amended or new rules. 

 

23



 

24



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6B  MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 

 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Mayoral Appointment Recommendations 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Receive Mayor Steward’s proposed appointments to the CARE Council, Hays Housing Authority Board, 
Hays Public Library Board, and Sister Cities Advisory Board. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following proposed appointments will be presented for approval at the April 24, 2014 City Commission 
meeting. 
 
CARE Council 
 
Michael Billinger – 2-year term to expire on 3-1-16 (2nd term) 
Olga Detrixhe – 2-year term to expire on 3-1-16 (1st term) 
 
Hays Housing Authority Board 
 
Sue Rouse – 4-year term to expire 2-14-18 (3rd term) 
 
Hays Public Library Board 
 
Katherine Wolfe – unexpired term to expire 4-30-16 (1st term) 
 
Sister Cities Advisory Board 
 
Ang Robson – unexpired term to expire 1-1-15 (1st term) 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Mayor  
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications Received for these Boards 

 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7  MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Vehicle Abatement at 510 W 23rd 

 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2014-006 to abate the vehicles located on the property at 510 W 23rd 
ten days after the approval date. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The abandoned vehicles located at 510 W 23rd have expired tags deeming them inoperable.  
Up to this point, all proper notification has been given to the owner of the property.  To date, 
no action has been taken by the owner of the property or the vehicles.  If the vehicles are 
removed by the City, all costs of abatement will be charged to the owner of the property.  
Staff recommends approving the resolution allowing the vehicles located at 510 W 23rd to be 
abated by the City. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approving this resolution allowing the vehicles located at 510 W 23rd to be 
removed from the property. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Resolution No. 2014-006 
Letters to Property Owner 
Pictures 
 
 

 
 

39



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   April 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  Vehicle Abatement at 510 W 23rd   
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The two abandoned vehicles located in the rear yard at 510 W 23rd have expired tags 
deeming them inoperable.  Up to this point, all proper notification has been given to the 
owner of the property.  To date, no action has been taken by the owner of the property or 
the vehicles. The property is vacant and has been unoccupied for several years.  The 
property has not had City water service since 1996.  If the vehicles are removed by the 
city, all costs of abatement will be charged to the owner of the property.  Staff 
recommends approving the resolution allowing the vehicles located at 510 W 23rd to be 
abated by the city. 
 

Background  
The vehicles located within the rear yard at 510 W 23rd do not have current and legal 
tags.  The property belongs to Clarence and/or Verlon Monroe from McCracken, Ks and 
no personal contact has been made with the owner other than the letters by US mail.  
There have been 8 various violations of one kind or another at this property in the past 2 
years.  The property is vacant and has been unoccupied for several years.  The property 
has not had City water service since 1996. 
 

Discussion 
Planning, Inspection, and Enforcement is requesting a resolution to abate the inoperable 
vehicles located within the rear yard at 510 W 23rd be placed on the agenda for formal 
action at the April 10, 2014 City Commission meeting.  The property located at 510 W 
23rd is in violation of City Ordinance Chapter 26 Article II.  The vehicles have no current 
and legal tags, deeming them inoperable.  Letters have been sent per City of Hays 
Ordinance requirements.    No progress has been made on these vehicles.  Staff is now 
moving forward for abatement of the vehicles since the owner of the property has not 
followed through accordingly.  

Legal Consideration 
The City is required to follow procedures established by the ordinance cited in the 
Discussion.  Assuming those procedures were followed, the City is allowed to remove 
and dispose of the vehicle. 

40



 

Financial Consideration 
Any costs associated with the city removing these vehicles will be billed to the property 
owner.  If not paid, an assessment will be placed on the tax rolls.  
 

Options 
Options include the following: 

 Approve the resolution allowing for the vehicles to be removed 
 Do not approve the resolution 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving this resolution allowing the vehicles located at 510 W 23rd 
to be removed from the property. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the resolution to abate the vehicles located on the property at 510 W 23rd ten 
days after the approval date. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Letters to Property Owner 
Pictures 
Resolution 
 

41



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-006 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF HAYS OR ITS DESIG-
NATED AGENT TO ABATE NUISANCE LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY 
AT 510 W 23rd, HAYS, KANSAS. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hays did enact Ordinance Chapter 26, 
Article 2, declaring certain matters as inoperable vehicles a 
violation of City Ordinance and providing for the removal or 
abatement of inoperable vehicles and further providing for the 
assessment of costs and penalties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 7, 2013, January 3, 2014, and February 
5, 2014, inspections of the property were conducted by the City 
of Hays, and said inspections determined the inoperable vehicles 
on the property at 510 W 23rd were in violation of City Ordinance 
Chapter 26, Article 2; and 
  

WHEREAS, on October 8, 2013, a letter was sent to the owner 
of the property at 510 W 23rd, requesting that the owner abate the 
nuisance by removal of the inoperable vehicles within 30 days; 
and   

 
 WHEREAS, on January 3, 2014, a certified letter to the owner 
of the property at 510 W 23rd was prepared giving said owner ten 
days, upon receipt, in which to abate the nuisance; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 16, 2014, the certified letter to the 
owner of the property at 510 W 23rd was received in the office of 
Public Works and marked by the United States Postal Service as 
being unable to deliver; 
 
 WHEREAS, an inspection of the property done on February 5, 
2014, revealed the inoperable vehicles were not abated from the 
property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Hays desires that 
the inoperable vehicles on the property at 510 W 23rd be abated by 
the City or its authorized agent. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the existence of the inoperable vehicles 
located at 510 W 23rd is hereby found to be in violation of 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2. 
 

Section 2.  That the owner of the property located at 510 W 
23rd was given proper notice to abate the nuisance condition 
located at 510 W 23rd and has failed to abate the said nuisance. 
 
 Section 3.  That the City of Hays or its designated agent is 
hereby authorized to abate the condition causing the violation at 

42



the end of ten days from the date of passage of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 4.  That the cost incurred by the City shall be 
charged against the lot located at 510 W 23rd as provided in 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2. 
 
  
 PASSED by the City Commission on the 10th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Brenda Kitchen, City Clerk 
 

43



I.D. CREECH, DIRECTOR 
JOHN BRAUN, ASST. DIRECTOR
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601 

AIRPORT DIVISION
BOB JOHNSON, MANAGER 
3950 E 8TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601 

PLANNING, INSPECTION, & ENFORCEMENT
JESSE ROHR, SUPT. 
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601 

TEL 785-628-7350 
FAX 785-628-7352 

TEL 785-628-7370 
FAX 785-628-7373 

TEL 785-628-7310 
FAX 785-628-7352 

< 

ALVIN PEREZ, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601 

NICK WILLIS, SUPT. 
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601 

MARVIN HONAS, SUPT. 
1780 W. 55TH ST., HAYS, KS 
67601 

SERVICE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7353 
FAX 785-628-7352

STORMWATER DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7350 
FAX785-628-7352 

SOLID WASTE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7357 
FAX 785-628-7352 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
www.haysusa.com

October 8, 2013 

Clarence or Verlon Monroe 
508 West Ash 
MCCRACKEN, KS67556 

RE: 510 West 23rd 

      Hays, KS67601 

Dear Clarence or Verlon Monroe :

It has come to our attention that a city code violation(s) exist at 510 West 23rd, Hays, Kansas (photo(s) are 
attached). The violation consists of Inoperable Vehicles on Private Property. Ellis County records 
indicate that you are the owner of the property. The item(s) listed are in violation of City Ordinance, Sec. 
26-40 (Inoperable Vehicles). 

We request that you please correct the problem within the next 30 days. We sincerely appreciate your 
cooperation. Inspectors will revisit the site after 11/11/2013, and it is our hope that corrective action will 
have been taken. If not, we will need to take further steps to resolve this issue. 

If you have questions, please contact me at the Public Works Department Planning, Inspection, and 
Enforcement Division at (785)628-7310. Thanks for working with us to keep Hays a safe, attractive and 
wholesome place to live. 

Sincerely,

Chris Rorabaugh
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

Enclosed: Pictures 

Cc: File
      Resident (if applicable) 

44



I.D. CREECH, DIRECTOR
JOHN BRAUN, ASST. DIRECTOR
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

AIRPORT DIVISION
BOB JOHNSON, MANAGER
3950 E 8TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

PLANNING, INSPECTION, & ENFORCEMENT
JESSE ROHR, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

TEL 785-628-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

TEL 785-628-7370
FAX 785-628-7373

TEL 785-628-7310
FAX 785-628-7352

ALVIN PEREZ, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

NICK WILLIS, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

MARVIN HONAS, SUPT.
1780 W. 55TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

SERVICE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7353
FAX 785-628-7352

STORMWATER DIVISION
TEL 785-328-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

SOLID WASTE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7357
FAX 785-628-7352

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
www.haysusa.com

January 3, 2014

Clarence or Verlon Monroe
508 West Ash
MCCRACKEN, KS 67556

RE: 510 West 23rd

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL:

Dear Clarence or Verlon Monroe:

The violation located at 510 West 23rd, Hays, Kansas still exists (photos attached). We wrote a letter to you on 
10/8/2013 requesting that you abate the situation.

You have ten (10) days from the date of receipt of this letter to abate the violation. Failure to abate the violation 
within ten (10) days will result in the City or its authorized agent to file an abatement process for Inoperable 
Vehicles on Private Property on your property. The costs will be assessed to the owner or agent in charge of the 
property. Opportunity will be given to the owner to pay the assessment, and if not paid, it will be added to the 
property tax as a special assessment. Please note that you have ten (10) days from the receipt of this notice to file a 
written appeal, requesting a hearing before the governing body.

We ask again that you please resolve this situation immediately. If you have questions or need further explanation, 
feel free to contact me at (785) 628-7310. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Rorabaugh
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

Enclosed: Pictures

Cc: City Prosecutor
File

45



46



47



 

48



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 8  MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Vehicle Abatement at 1309 Donald Dr. 

 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2014-007 to abate the vehicle located on the property at 1309 
Donald Drive ten days after the approval date. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The abandoned vehicle (White Pontiac Firebird) located in the rear yard at 1309 Donald Dr. 
has expired tags and flat tires therefore deeming it inoperable.  Up to this point, all proper 
notification has been given to the owner of the property.  To date, no action has been taken 
by the owner of the property.  If the vehicle is removed by the city, all costs of abatement will 
be charged to the owner of the property.  Staff recommends approving the resolution allowing 
the vehicle located at 1309 Donald Dr. to be abated by the city. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approving this resolution allowing the vehicle located at 1309 Donald Dr. 
to be removed from the property. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Resolution No. 2014-007 
Letters to Property Owner 
Pictures 
 
 

49



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   April 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  Vehicle Abatement at 1309 Donald Dr.  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The abandoned vehicle (White Pontiac Firebird) located in the rear yard at 1309 Donald 
Dr. has expired tags and flat tires therefore deeming it inoperable.  Up to this point, all 
proper notification has been given to the owner of the property.  To date, no action has 
been taken by the owner of the property.  If the vehicle is removed by the city, all costs of 
abatement will be charged to the owner of the property.  Staff recommends approving the 
resolution allowing the vehicle located at 1309 Donald Dr. to be abated by the city. 
 

Background  
The property upon which the vehicle is setting belongs to Dustin Schreurs.  The owner 
resides at this property. 
 

Discussion 
Planning, Inspection, and Enforcement is requesting a resolution to abate the inoperable 
vehicle (White Pontiac Firebird) located on the property at 1309 Donald Dr. be placed on 
the agenda for formal action at the April 10, 2014 City Commission meeting.  The 
property located at 1309 Donald Dr. is in violation of City Ordinance Chapter 26 Article 
II.  The vehicle has no current and legal tags and has several flat tires, therefore deeming 
it inoperable.  Letters have been sent per City of Hays Ordinance requirements.  No 
progress has been made on this vehicle.  Staff is now moving forward for abatement of 
the vehicle since the owner of the property has not followed through accordingly.   

 
Legal Consideration 

The City is required to follow procedures established by the ordinance cited in the 
Discussion.  Assuming those procedures were followed, the City is allowed to remove 
and dispose of the vehicle. 

 

Financial Consideration 
Any costs associated with the city removing these vehicles will be billed to the property 
owner.  If not paid, an assessment will be placed on the tax rolls.  
 

50



Options 
Options include the following: 

 Approve the resolution allowing for the vehicles to be removed 
 Do not approve the resolution 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving this resolution allowing the vehicle located at 1309 Donald 
Dr. to be removed from the property. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the resolution to abate the vehicle located on the property at 1309 Donald Dr. 
ten days after the approval date. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Letters to Property Owner 
Pictures 
Resolution 
 

51



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-007 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF HAYS OR ITS DESIG-
NATED AGENT TO ABATE NUISANCE LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY 
AT 1309 DONALD DR., HAYS, KANSAS. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hays did enact Ordinance Chapter 26, 
Article 2, declaring certain matters as inoperable vehicles a 
violation of City Ordinance and providing for the removal or 
abatement of inoperable vehicles and further providing for the 
assessment of costs and penalties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 21, 2013, December 26, 2013, January 
10, 2014, and February 25, 2014, inspections of the property were 
conducted by the City of Hays, and said inspections determined 
the inoperable vehicle on the property at 1309 Donald Dr. was in 
violation of City Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2; and 
  

WHEREAS, on December 27, 2013, a letter was sent to the 
owner of the property at 1309 Donald Dr., requesting that the 
owner abate the nuisance by removal of the inoperable vehicle 
within 5 days; and   

 
 WHEREAS, on January 15, 2014, a certified letter to the 
owner of the property at 1309 Donald Dr. was prepared giving said 
owner ten days, upon receipt, in which to abate the nuisance; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 21, 2014, the certified letter to the 
owner of the property at 1309 Donald Dr. was verified as received 
by said owner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an inspection of the property done on February 25, 
2014, revealed the inoperable vehicle was not abated from the 
property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Hays desires that 
the inoperable vehicle on the property at 1309 Donald Dr. be 
abated by the City or its authorized agent. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the existence of the inoperable vehicle 
located at 1309 Donald Dr. is hereby found to be in violation of 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2. 
 

Section 2.  That the owner of the property located at 1309 
Donald Dr. was given proper notice to abate the nuisance 
condition located at 1309 Donald Dr. and has failed to abate the 
said nuisance. 
 
 Section 3.  That the City of Hays or its designated agent is 
hereby authorized to abate the condition causing the violation at 

52



the end of ten days from the date of passage of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 4.  That the cost incurred by the City shall be 
charged against the lot located at 1309 Donald Dr. as provided in 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2. 
 
  
 PASSED by the City Commission on the 10th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Brenda Kitchen, City Clerk 
 

53



I.D. CREECH, DIRECTOR
JOHN BRAUN, ASST. DIRECTOR
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

AIRPORT DIVISION
BOB JOHNSON, MANAGER
3950 E 8TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

PLANNING, INSPECTION, & ENFORCEMENT
JESSE ROHR, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

TEL 785-628-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

TEL 785-628-7370
FAX 785-628-7373

TEL 785-628-7310
FAX 785-628-7352

ALVIN PEREZ, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

NICK WILLIS, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

MARVIN HONAS, SUPT.
1780 W. 55TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

SERVICE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7353
FAX 785-628-7352

STORMWATER DIVISION
TEL 785-328-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

SOLID WASTE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7357
FAX 785-628-7352

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
www.haysusa.com

December 27, 2013

Dustin Schreurs
1309 Donald Dr.
HAYS, KS 67601

RE: 1309 Donald Dr.

Dear Dustin Schreurs:

It has come to our attention that a city code violation(s) exist at 1309 Donald Dr., Hays, Kansas (photo(s) are 
attached). The violation consists of General Nuisance & Inoperable Vehicles on Private Property . Ellis County 
records indicate that you are the owner of the property. The item(s) listed are in violation of City Ordinance, Sec. 
26-153 (General Nuisance) & Sec. 26-40 (Inoperable Vehicles) .

We request that you please correct the problem within the next 5 days. We sincerely appreciate your cooperation. 
Inspectors will revisit the site after 1/6/2014, and it is our hope that corrective action will have been taken. If not, 
we will need to take further steps to resolve this issue.

If you have questions, please contact me at the Public Works Department Planning, Inspection, and Enforcement 
Division at (785) 628-7310. Thanks for working with us to keep Hays a safe, attractive and wholesome place to 
live.

Sincerely, 

Dean Koehn
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

Enclosed: Pictures

Cc: File
       Resident (if applicable)

54



I.D. CREECH, DIRECTOR
JOHN BRAUN, ASST. DIRECTOR
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

AIRPORT DIVISION
BOB JOHNSON, MANAGER
3950 E 8TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

PLANNING, INSPECTION, & ENFORCEMENT
JESSE ROHR, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

TEL 785-628-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

TEL 785-628-7370
FAX 785-628-7373

TEL 785-628-7310
FAX 785-628-7352

ALVIN PEREZ, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

NICK WILLIS, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

MARVIN HONAS, SUPT.
1780 W. 55TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

SERVICE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7353
FAX 785-628-7352

STORMWATER DIVISION
TEL 785-328-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

SOLID WASTE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7357
FAX 785-628-7352

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
www.haysusa.com

January 15, 2014

Dustin Schreurs
1309 Donald Dr.
HAYS, KS 67601

RE: 1309 Donald Dr.

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL:

Dear Dustin Schreurs:

The violation located at 1309 Donald Dr., Hays, Kansas still exists (photos attached). We wrote a letter to you on 
12/27/2013 requesting that you abate the situation.

You have ten (10) days from the date of receipt of this letter to abate the violation. Failure to abate the violation 
within ten (10) days will result in the City or its authorized agent to file an abatement process for General Nuisance 
& Inoperable Vehicles on Private Property on your property. The costs will be assessed to the owner or agent in 
charge of the property. Opportunity will be given to the owner to pay the assessment, and if not paid, it will be 
added to the property tax as a special assessment. Please note that you have ten (10) days from the receipt of this 
notice to file a written appeal, requesting a hearing before the governing body.

We ask again that you please resolve this situation immediately. If you have questions or need further explanation, 
feel free to contact me at (785) 628-7310. 

Sincerely, 

Dean Koehn
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

Enclosed: Pictures

Cc: City Prosecutor
File

55



56



57



 

58



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 9  MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Vehicle Abatement at 1812 E 27th  

 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2014-008 to abate the vehicle located on the property at 1812 E 27th 
ten days after the approval date. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The abandoned vehicle (GMC Conversion Van) located in the driveway at 1812 E 27th has 
expired tags therefore deeming it inoperable.  Up to this point, all proper notification has been 
given to the owner of the property.  To date, no action has been taken by the owner of the 
property.  Personal or phone contact has been made several times with promises made by 
the owner to remove the vehicle, however the vehicle remains in place as of the date of this 
memo.  If the vehicle is removed by the City, all costs of abatement will be charged to the 
owner of the property.  Staff recommends approving the resolution allowing the vehicle 
located at 1812 E 27th to be abated by the City. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approving this resolution allowing the vehicle located at 1812 E 27th to be 
removed from the property. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Resolution No. 2014-008 
Letters to Property Owner 
Pictures 
 
 

59



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   April 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  Vehicle Abatement at 1812 E 27th   
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The abandoned vehicle (GMC Conversion Van) located in the driveway at 1812 E 27th 
has expired tags therefore deeming it inoperable.  Up to this point, all proper notification 
has been given to the owner of the property.  To date, no action has been taken by the 
owner of the property.  Personal or phone contact has been made several times with 
promises made by the owner to remove the vehicle, however the vehicle remains in place 
as of the date of this memo.  If the vehicle is removed by the city, all costs of abatement 
will be charged to the owner of the property.  Staff recommends approving the resolution 
allowing the vehicle located at 1812 E 27th to be abated by the city. 
 

Background  
Staff initially started this case with multiple vehicles.  Most were removed from the 
property with the exception of the remaining van.  The property belongs to Richard and 
Tawnita Augustine who reside at the subject residence.  
 

Discussion 
Planning, Inspection, and Enforcement is requesting a resolution to abate the inoperable 
vehicle located on the property at 1812 E 27th be placed on the agenda for formal action 
at the April 10, 2014 City Commission meeting.  The property located at 1812 E 27th is in 
violation of City Ordinance Chapter 26 Article II.  The vehicle has no current and legal 
tags and has several flat tires, therefore deeming it inoperable.  Letters have been sent per 
City of Hays Ordinance requirements.    Personal or phone contact has been made several 
times with promises made to remove the vehicle, however the vehicle remains in place as 
of the date of this memo.  No progress has been made on this vehicle.  Staff is now 
moving forward for abatement of the vehicle since the owner of the property has not 
followed through accordingly.  
 

Legal Consideration 
The City is required to follow procedures established by the ordinance cited in the 
Discussion.  Assuming those procedures were followed, the City is allowed to remove 
and dispose of the vehicle. 

60



 

Financial Consideration 
Any costs associated with the city removing these vehicles will be billed to the property 
owner.  If not paid, an assessment will be placed on the tax rolls.  
 

Options 
Options include the following: 

 Approve the resolution allowing for the vehicles to be removed 
 Do not approve the resolution 

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends approving this resolution allowing the vehicle located at 1812 E 27th to 
be removed from the property. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the resolution to abate the vehicle located on the property at 1812 E 27th ten 
days after the approval date. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Letters to Property Owner 
Pictures 
Resolution 
 

61



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-008 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF HAYS OR ITS DESIG-
NATED AGENT TO ABATE NUISANCE LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY 
AT 1812 E 27th, HAYS, KANSAS. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Hays did enact Ordinance Chapter 26, 
Article 2, declaring certain matters as inoperable vehicles a 
violation of City Ordinance and providing for the removal or 
abatement of inoperable vehicles and further providing for the 
assessment of costs and penalties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 21, 2013, January 22, 2014, and 
February 25, 2014, inspections of the property were conducted by 
the City of Hays, and said inspections determined the inoperable 
vehicle on the property at 1812 E 27th was in violation of City 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2; and 
  

WHEREAS, on November 22, 2013, a letter was sent to the 
owner of the property at 1812 E 27th, requesting that the owner 
abate the nuisance by removal of the inoperable vehicle within 5 
days; and   

 
 WHEREAS, on January 22, 2014, a certified letter to the 
owner of the property at 1812 E 27th was prepared giving said 
owner ten days, upon receipt, in which to abate the nuisance; and 
 

WHEREAS, on January 27, 2014, the certified letter to the 
owner of the property at 1812 E 27th was verified as received by 
said owner; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an inspection of the property done on February 25, 
2014, revealed the inoperable vehicle was not abated from the 
property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Hays desires that 
the inoperable vehicle on the property at 1812 E 27th be abated by 
the City or its authorized agent. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  That the existence of the inoperable vehicle 
located at 1812 E 27th is hereby found to be in violation of 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2. 
 

Section 2.  That the owner of the property located at 1812 E 
27th was given proper notice to abate the nuisance condition 
located at 1812 E 27th and has failed to abate the said nuisance. 
 
 Section 3.  That the City of Hays or its designated agent is 
hereby authorized to abate the condition causing the violation at 
the end of ten days from the date of passage of this Resolution. 

62



 
 Section 4.  That the cost incurred by the City shall be 
charged against the lot located at 1812 E 27th as provided in 
Ordinance Chapter 26, Article 2. 
 
  
 PASSED by the City Commission on the 10th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Brenda Kitchen, City Clerk 
 

63



I.D. CREECH, DIRECTOR
JOHN BRAUN, ASST. DIRECTOR
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

AIRPORT DIVISION
BOB JOHNSON, MANAGER
3950 E 8TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

PLANNING, INSPECTION, & ENFORCEMENT
JESSE ROHR, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

TEL 785-628-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

TEL 785-628-7370
FAX 785-628-7373

TEL 785-628-7310
FAX 785-628-7352

ALVIN PEREZ, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

NICK WILLIS, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

MARVIN HONAS, SUPT.
1780 W. 55TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

SERVICE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7353
FAX 785-628-7352

STORMWATER DIVISION
TEL 785-328-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

SOLID WASTE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7357
FAX 785-628-7352

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
www.haysusa.com

November 22, 2013

Richard & Tawnita Augustine
1812 E 27th St
HAYS, KS 67601

RE: 1812 E 27th St

Dear Richard & Tawnita Augustine:

It has come to our attention that a city code violation(s) exist at 1812 E 27th St, Hays, Kansas (photo(s) are 
attached). The violation consists of Inoperable Vehicles on Private Property. Ellis County records indicate that 
you are the owner of the property. The item(s) listed are in violation of City Ordinance, Sec. 26-40 (Inoperable 
Vehicles).

We request that you please correct the problem within the next 5 days. We sincerely appreciate your cooperation. 
Inspectors will revisit the site after 12/3/2013, and it is our hope that corrective action will have been taken. If not, 
we will need to take further steps to resolve this issue.

If you have questions, please contact me at the Public Works Department Planning, Inspection, and Enforcement 
Division at (785) 628-7310. Thanks for working with us to keep Hays a safe, attractive and wholesome place to 
live.

Sincerely, 

Dean Koehn
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

Enclosed: Pictures

Cc: File
       Resident (if applicable)

64



I.D. CREECH, DIRECTOR
JOHN BRAUN, ASST. DIRECTOR
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

AIRPORT DIVISION
BOB JOHNSON, MANAGER
3950 E 8TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

PLANNING, INSPECTION, & ENFORCEMENT
JESSE ROHR, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

TEL 785-628-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

TEL 785-628-7370
FAX 785-628-7373

TEL 785-628-7310
FAX 785-628-7352

ALVIN PEREZ, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

NICK WILLIS, SUPT.
1002 VINE ST., HAYS, KS 67601

MARVIN HONAS, SUPT.
1780 W. 55TH ST., HAYS, KS 67601

SERVICE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7353
FAX 785-628-7352

STORMWATER DIVISION
TEL 785-328-7350
FAX 785-628-7352

SOLID WASTE DIVISION
TEL 785-628-7357
FAX 785-628-7352

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
www.haysusa.com

January 22, 2014

Richard & Tawnita Augustine
1812 E 27th St
HAYS, KS 67601

RE: 1812 E 27th St

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL:

Dear Richard & Tawnita Augustine:

The violation located at 1812 E 27th St, Hays, Kansas still exists (photos attached). We wrote a letter to you on 
11/21/2013 requesting that you abate the situation.

You have ten (10) days from the date of receipt of this letter to abate the violation. Failure to abate the violation 
within ten (10) days will result in the City or its authorized agent to file an abatement process for Inoperable 
Vehicles on Private Property on your property. The costs will be assessed to the owner or agent in charge of the 
property. Opportunity will be given to the owner to pay the assessment, and if not paid, it will be added to the 
property tax as a special assessment. Please note that you have ten (10) days from the receipt of this notice to file a 
written appeal, requesting a hearing before the governing body.

We ask again that you please resolve this situation immediately. If you have questions or need further explanation, 
feel free to contact me at (785) 628-7310. 

Sincerely, 

Dean Koehn
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer

Enclosed: Pictures

Cc: City Prosecutor
File

65



66



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 10  MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Award of Contract for Zoning Regulation Rewrite 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
It is requested that the City Manager be allowed to enter into a contract with KKC for the 
Zoning and Subdivision Regulation Rewrite. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Primarily as a result of the findings of the 2012 Comprehensive Plan, and upon the 
recommendations of staff and the Planning Commission, it was decided to pursue a 
consultant to rewrite the current “first generation” Zoning and Subdivision Regulations.  In 
November of 2013, proposals were sought for the review and rewrite of the current zoning 
and subdivision regulations.  The nine proposals were narrowed down to three by a selection 
committee comprised of City staff and members of the Planning Commission.  Because they 
meet the requirements of the request for proposals and were the top firm recommended by 
the Selection Committee, the members of the Selection Committee recommend entering into 
a contract with Kendig Keast Collaborative for the rewrite of the Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends entering into a contract with KKC for the rewrite of the Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulations. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The members of the Selection Committee recommend entering into a contract with KKC for 
the rewrite of the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Professional Service Agreement 
Other Contract Items (Scope of Services, Licensing Agreement) 

67



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session:   April 3, 2014 
 
Subject:  Award of Contract for Zoning Regulation Rewrite  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
Primarily as a result of the findings of the 2012 Comprehensive Plan, and upon the 
recommendations of staff and the Planning Commission, it was decided to pursue a 
consultant to rewrite the current “first generation” Zoning and Subdivision Regulations.  
In November of 2013, proposals were sought for the review and rewrite of the current 
zoning and subdivision regulations.  The nine proposals were narrowed down to three by 
a selection committee comprised of City staff and members of the Planning Commission.  
Because they meet the requirements of the request for proposals and were the top firm 
recommended by the Selection Committee, staff recommends entering into a contract 
with Kendig Keast Collaborative for the rewrite of the Zoning and Subdivision 
Regulations.  The process will cost $150k and is estimated to take 14 months to 
complete. 
 

Background  
The City of Hays adopted a new Comprehensive Plan in 2012.  One of the findings of the 
plan that was brought to light is just how outdated and “First Generation” the current 
zoning and subdivision regulations really are.  As a result, the 2014 budget included 
funding to hire a consultant to review and rewrite the current regulations to something 
more modern and fitting with the trends of current development and lifestyles. 
 

Discussion 
In November of 2013, proposals were sought for the review and rewrite of the current 
zoning and subdivision regulations.  Nine well-qualified firms from across the nation 
submitted proposals for consideration.  A selection committee comprised of Public 
Works and City Management staff and two members of the Planning Commission 
narrowed the proposals down to what was believed to be the three best firms for the 
project.  The firms were from Colorado, Nebraska, and Texas.  All three firms had well 
written proposals and had good things to offer.  A face-to-face interview was conducted 
with each firm in order to try and get a better grasp of their approach to the project and 
try and get a feel for their personalities and how they would mesh with Hays and this 
project. 

68



The members of the selection committee met after the interviews and decided to move 
forward and recommend a firm from Sugar Land, Texas, Kendig Keast Collaborative 
(KKC).  KKC interviewed very well, presented a great selection of similar work in other 
communities across the nation similar to Hays, and seemed to be the best fit for the 
project.  Their depth of staff, project approach, and proposed deliverables seemed to give 
them an edge over the other two firms interviewed.  Seeing some of KKC’s current 
projects of similar nature to what we are as asking as well as recently completed projects 
made a difference.  KKC also offers an on-line code program called encode-360 that staff 
and others will get to experience throughout this project. 

Although this firm is based out of Texas, they do have ties to Kansas and familiarity with 
Kansas Planning methods and laws.  The President of KKC and Principal-in-Charge for 
this project, Bret Keast, is a K.U. graduate, former Senior Planner for Olathe, Ks., and 
former President of the Kansas Chapter of the American Planning Association.  Matt 
Bucchin, Project Manager, had also worked at both the City and County level in the 
planning field prior to working with KKC. 

 

The process as outlined in the proposal is expected to take 14 months.  The process has 
five General steps: 

Step 1: Public Participation (including a joint Planning Commission/City Commission 
meeting) and developers forum 

Step 2: Analytic and Strategic Framework (regulation analysis/evaluation, annotated 
outline) 

Step 3: Zoning and Subdivision Regulation Drafting 

Step 4: Adoption and Delivery (Public hearings and final adoption) 

Step  5: Supplemental Services (Training, Development Guidebook, etc.) 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
The 2014 budget included funding in the amount of $150,000.  KKC’s proposal is 
expected to cost $150,000.  Although there are additional supplemental services offered 
by KKC, there is no plan to initiate any of those supplemental services at this time. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Allow the City Manager to enter into a contract with KKC for the Zoning and 
Subdivision Regulation Rewrite  

 Provide staff with other options 
 

Recommendation 
The members of the Selection Committee recommend entering into a contract with KKC 
for the rewrite of the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations. 
 
 

69



Action Requested 
It is requested that the City Manager be allowed to enter into a contract with KKC for the 
Zoning and Subdivision Regulation Rewrite. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Bidders List 
Professional Service Agreement 
Policy to Practice 
 

70



Name of Company Contact Address City State
Baughman Company, P.A. Phillip J. Meyer, L.A. 315 Ellis St Wichita KS
Camiros Ltd. Arista Strungys 411 S Wells, Ste 400 Chicago IL
Clarion Associates LLC Matt Goebel AICP 621 17th St, Ste 2250 Denver CO
Confluence Christopher Shires AICP 417 Delaware Street Kansas City MO
GouldEvans Chris Brewster, AICP, JD 4041 Mill St Kansas City MO 64111
Marvin Planning Consultants Keith A Marvin 1111 Lincoln Mall, Lincoln NE
RDG Amy Hasse 900 Farnham on the Omaha NE
White & Smith LLC Mark White 529 SE 2nd St, Ste B Lee's MO
Kendig Keast Collaborative Bret Keast 1415 Highway 6 Sugar Land TX

TOP THREE INTERVIEWED

Zoning Regulation Rewrite Bidders List

71



 
Page 1 of 11 

 

  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

  REVIEW AND RE‐WRITE OF ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

for 

  HAYS, KANSAS 

 

STATE OF KANSAS  § 

§    KNOW BY THESE PRESENTS: 

COUNTY OF ELLIS  § 

 

 

This Agreement made  this  10th day  of April,  2014, by  and  between  the Hays, Kansas,  acting  by  and 

through  Toby Dougherty,  City Manager,  hereinafter  referred  to  as  the  ʺCLIENT,ʺ  and Kendig Keast 

Collaborative, an  Illinois Corporation, acting by and  through  its President, Mr. Bret C. Keast, with an 

office located at 1415 Highway 6 South, Suite A‐300, Sugar Land, Texas, 77478, hereinafter referred to as 

the ʺCONSULTANT,ʺ do hereby make and enter into the following Agreement. 

 

  ARTICLE I 

  CONSULTANT 

 

1.1    The  CONSULTANT,  as  an  independent  contractor,  covenants  and  agrees  to  perform  the 

professional planning  services  related  to  the Review  and Re‐write  of Zoning  and  Subdivision 

Regulations as described in Article II, Scope of Services.  Such services shall be performed by the 

CONSULTANT in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement and for the consideration 

stated.   Subject  to  the provisions of Article VI below, CONSULTANT covenants and agrees  to 

perform the specific services identified in Exhibit “A” – Scope of Services.   The CONSULTANT 

shall  complete  the  Scope  of  Services  and  shall  submit  reports  to  the  CLIENT  as  deemed 

appropriate by CONSULTANT or agreed by and between CONSULTANT and CLIENT. 

 

1.2  The CONSULTANT  shall provide  its  services under  this Agreement with  the  same degree  of 

care,  skill,  and  diligence  as  is  ordinarily  provided  by  a  professional  planner  under  similar 

circumstances for the preparation of a Regulation Update and to which the Agreement applies. 

 

  ARTICLE II 

  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

2.1    The CONSULTANT will perform the professional planning services related to the development 

of the Review and Re‐write of Zoning and Subdivision Regulations as set forth in Exhibit ʺAʺ – 

Scope of Services, which is attached and made a part of this Agreement. 

 

2.2    Pursuant  to  this Agreement,  the  CLIENT  shall  have  the  option  to  obtain  the  services  of  the 

CONSULTANT to perform Additional Services.  Such Additional Services will be documented in 

a progress report, and may or may not be described in a written Amendment to this Agreement. 

As  agreed  mutually  by  the  CLIENT  and  the  CONSULTANT,  Additional  Services  that  are 

described in a written Amendment to this Agreement shall include a description of the additional 

work, associated compensation, and time schedule, as applicable.  By way of illustration, matters 

which may constitute Additional Services shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 

72



 
Page 2 of 11 

 

(a) Requested additional workshops or meetings other than the number identified in the Scope 

of  Services  and  project  schedule  that  require  added  preparation  or  follow‐up  or  displace 

other planned trip activities; 

(b) Requested  additional  trips  other  than  the  number  identified  in  the  Scope  of  Services  and 

project schedule; 

(c) Requested additional days or nights added  to a scheduled  trip  that require additional  time 

and direct expenses  (e.g., meals, hotel nights, extended  car  rental and gasoline use, airline 

change fees, extended airport parking, etc.); 

(d) Other  requested work  tasks,  study activities, or documentation not  foreseen or  specifically 

identified in the Scope of Services; 

(e) Requested additional deliverables (e.g., executive summary) or additional physical copies of 

deliverables,  including  the  submission  at key milestones of draft  and  final written  reports 

and maps other than those specified, or in a quantity greater than the number identified, in 

the Scope of Services; 

(f) Requested additional revisions (individual or cumulative) to draft and final deliverables that 

are beyond the single comprehensive round of revisions that are to be collected, consolidated, 

and annotated by the CLIENT as outlined in the Scope of Services; 

(g) Requested  review  and  provision  of  recommendations  relating  to  other  planning  or 

development  related  issues  and  matters  other  than  those  for  which  such  findings  and 

recommendations are specified in the Scope of Services; 

(h) Further  requested  changes  to  a deliverable which  the CONSULTANT has  already  revised 

based  on  review  comments  and which  the CLIENT  has  already  accepted  as  revised,  and 

which  the  CONSULTANT  determines  to  be  significant  and  substantive  changes  to  a 

deliverable  already  at  a  point  of  substantial  completion  in  accordance with  the  Scope  of 

Services and available budget; 

(i) Requested incorporation of substantive revisions into the draft or final plan document which 

have arisen  since  the plan, ordinance, document, maps or other materials delivered  to  the 

CLIENT were originally prepared; and 

(j) Other  related  or  unrelated  professional  planning  services  that may  be  requested  by  the 

CLIENT.   

 

Any services requested or made necessary by CLIENT and provided by CONSULTANT that are 

not  in  the  CONSULTANT’s  determination  within  the  Scope  of  Services  are  considered 

Additional Services. Any  time Additional Services are  identified  in a progress  report, an effort 

will  be made  to  determine  if  it  is  possible  to  amend  the  Scope  of  Services  in  a manner  that 

eliminates or minimizes any  increase  in the total cost of the project.   Time required for such an 

analysis will be billed as Additional Services.  No changes to the Scope of Services will be made 

without CLIENT’s approval, but  if  it  is determined  that such changes are possible, and would 

reduce  or  eliminate  the  cost  impact  of  the Additional  Services,  the  Scope  of  Services will  be 

amended  with  the  consent  of  CLIENT.    However,  Additional  Services  for  which  offsetting 

adjustments  to  the  Scope  of  Services  are  not  reasonably  available will  be  compensated  for  as 

described in Article VI below, whether such services are agreed upon in writing or not.   

 

   

73



 
Page 3 of 11 

 

ARTICLE III 

  CONSULTANT PERSONNEL 

 

3.1    The  CONSULTANT  represents  that  it  has  or  will  secure  at  its  own  expense,  all  personnel 

required  in  performing  the  services  under  this  Agreement.    Such  personnel  shall  not  be 

employees of or have any contractual relationship with the CLIENT. 

 

3.2    The CONSULTANT may contract with Subconsultants for portions of the work or services under 

this Agreement with the prior written approval of the CLIENT. The subconsultants to be utilized 

include enCode‐360, LLC. Any work or services subcontracted hereunder shall be specified by a 

written Agreement and shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement.   

 

  ARTICLE IV 

  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

4.1    The CLIENT agrees to provide the CONSULTANT with support services during conduct of the 

services listed in Article II, Scope of Services.  Support services will include the services described 

in Exhibit “B” – Support Services, which is attached and made a part of this Agreement. 

 

4.2    To the extent authorized by law, the readily available existing data and documentation obtained 

by  the CLIENT  that  are  relevant  to  the  accomplishment  of  the  Scope  of  Services  specified  in 

Article II shall be made available by the CLIENT for use by the CONSULTANT. 

 

4.3    The CLIENT shall consider and act on all documents and project work  items submitted by  the 

CONSULTANT that require review, comments or approval by the CLIENT within a timeframe 

specified  in  Exhibit  “A”  Scope  of  Services  and/or  in  the  project  schedule  so  as  to  enable  the 

CONSULTANT to complete the work on schedule as provided in Article V of this Agreement. 

 

4.4    The CLIENT  agrees  to provide  the CONSULTANT with  support  services needed  to organize, 

schedule, notify, provide meeting locations, conduct meetings, and prepare minutes of meetings 

including committees, workshops, public meetings, and public hearings as described in Article II, 

Scope  of  Services.    The  CONSULTANT  will  advise  and  coordinate  with  the  CLIENT  to 

accomplish these support services. 

 

4.5    In the event CLIENT fails to provide any of the needed Support Services in a timely or adequate 

manner,  as  documented  in  a  progress  report,  any  additional  time  or  expenses  incurred  or 

required by CONSULTANT as a result of such  failure shall be compensated by CLIENT  in  the 

same manner as, and shall be considered to be, Additional Services. 

 

  ARTICLE V 

  TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

 

5.1    The CONSULTANT shall commence services upon execution of  this Agreement and  receipt of 

written Notice‐to‐Proceed from the CLIENT. 

 

74



 
Page 4 of 11 

 

5.2    The CONSULTANT shall make a good faith effort to complete the services described in Article II, 

Scope of Services within Fourteen (14) months from receipt of written Authorization to Proceed 

by the CLIENT, unless one or more of the following occur: 

(a)  This Agreement is terminated in accordance with Article X, Changes or Termination;  

(b)  The Scope of Services and/or Time of Performance are changed in accordance with Article II, 

Scope of Services or Article X, Changes or Termination; or 

(c)  Matters documented by CONSULTANT in progress reports render such completion schedule 

impossible or impracticable. 

 

5.3    The completion schedule set forth in Paragraph 5.2 may be subject to causes that result in delay 

over  which  neither  the  CONSULTANT  nor  the  CLIENT  has  any  control.    Notification  and 

justification for any such delays identified by the CONSULTANT must be  included in progress 

reports.  The schedule of work will be extended to include any such delays pursuant to Article X, 

Changes or Termination. 

 

5.4    This Agreement shall  terminate upon  the CLIENT’s  final acceptance of work completed by  the 

CONSULTANT, unless otherwise terminated or modified as hereinafter provided. 

 

  ARTICLE VI 

  COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT 

 

6.1  The CLIENT shall compensate the CONSULTANT for the professional services performed under 

this Agreement.  For the Basic Services described in Exhibit “A” Scope of Services under Article 

II, Scope of Services, the CLIENT shall pay to the CONSULTANT on a basis of reimbursement of 

Actual Costs Incurred (“ACI”) in an amount not‐to‐exceed $150,000 and zero dollars ($.00).  ACI 

includes salary costs, overhead, direct expenses, and profit.  The maximum ACI amount may be 

modified pursuant to Article X, Changes or Termination, in the event of increased cost, change in 

the Scope of Services, an extension of time beyond that specified in paragraph 5.2, or an increase 

or decrease  in  the  complexity or  character of  the work.  In addition  to ACI, CLIENT agrees  to 

compensate CONSULTANT for any Additional Services, as defined above, whether such services 

are  agreed  upon  in writing  or  not.    Such Additional  Services  or  expenses  shall  be  invoiced 

separately  by CONSULTANT  and  paid  by CLIENT  upon  receipt  of  billing  for  such  services.   

Such  payments  shall  be  in  addition  to  and  have  no  bearing  on  the  above ACI  not‐to‐exceed 

amount.   Payment  later than 30 days shall  include  interest at 1‐1/2 percent per month from the 

date  the CONSULTANT  receives  confirmation of CLIENT  receipt of  the  invoice until  the date 

CONSULTANT receives payment.  Such interest is due and payable when the overdue payment 

is made and is in addition to the above stated total contract amount. 

 

6.2    Payment shall be made by  the CLIENT upon  receipt of a statement  from CONSULTANT. The 

billing statement, certified true and correct by CONSULTANT, shall show the total amount  paid  

and the amount due and payable as of the date of the current statement.  Amounts paid and due 

for Additional Services shall be identified on a separate invoice.  Each invoice is due and payable 

by the CLIENT upon receipt by the CLIENT, subject to the terms of paragraph 6.1. 

 

6.3    The  terms  of  this Agreement  are  contingent  upon  sufficient  appropriations  and  authorization 

being made by  the CLIENT  for  the performance of  this Agreement.    If at any  time during  the 

period of performance under this Agreement, sufficient appropriations and authorization are not 

75



 
Page 5 of 11 

 

made by  the CLIENT,  this Agreement  shall  terminate upon written notice being given by  the 

CLIENT  to  the CONSULTANT.    In  such  event, CLIENT  shall  comply with  the  provisions  of 

Paragraph  10.4  below.  The  CLIENTʹs  decision  as  to  whether  sufficient  appropriations  are 

available shall be accepted by the CONSULTANT and shall be final. 

   

ARTICLE VII 

  PRODUCT OF SERVICES, COPYRIGHT 

 

7.1    The CONSULTANT and the CLIENT mutually agree that reports, maps and materials prepared 

or developed under the terms of this Agreement shall be delivered to and become the property of 

the CLIENT.  The CONSULTANT shall have the right to retain copies and to utilize the product 

of services for marketing purposes, except for any confidential information, as defined in Article 

XI, hereof. 

 

7.2    The CONSULTANT shall furnish the CLIENT with the number of copies of reports as shown in 

Article II, Scope of Services. 

 

7.3    Nothing produced in whole or in part by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall be the 

subject of an application  for copyright by or  for  the CONSULTANT.   The CONSULTANT will 

use existing proprietary software as required. 

 

  ARTICLE VIII 

  PRIVATE INTERESTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS AND CONSULTANT 

 

8.1    No employee, agent, or member of the local public body of the CLIENT shall have any financial 

interest, direct or indirect in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof, except as allowed in Section 

3.1 of this Agreement. 

 

  ARTICLE IX 

  CERTIFICATIONS OF CONSULTANT 

 

9.1    The CONSULTANT has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 

employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this Agreement, and it has 

not paid or  agreed  to pay  any  company or person, other  than  a bona  fide  employee working 

solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, any commission, percentage, brokerage fee, or any other 

consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement. 

 

9.2    The CONSULTANT presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, 

which would  conflict  in  any manner  or  degree with  the  performance  of  services  under  this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE X 

  CHANGES OR TERMINATION 

 

10.1   Except as expressly described above regarding Additional Services, this Agreement may not be 

altered, changed or amended except by instrument in writing executed by the parties hereto. 

 

76



 
Page 6 of 11 

 

10.2   The CLIENT may,  from  time  to  time,  request  changes  in  the Scope of Services  and/or  time of 

performance  for  the services of  the CONSULTANT to be performed hereunder.   Such changes, 

including any increase or decrease in the amount of the CONSULTANTʹS compensation, which 

are  mutually  agreed  upon  by  and  between  the  CLIENT  and  the  CONSULTANT,  shall  be 

incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.   

 

10.3   This Agreement may  be  terminated  before  the  termination  date  stated  in Article  V,  Time  of 

Performance, by any of the following conditions: 

 

(a)  Right of Either Party to Terminate for Cause ‐ This Agreement may be terminated by either of 

the parties hereto  for  failure by  the other party  to perform  in a  timely manner and proper 

manner  its obligations under this Agreement.   A signed, written notice of such termination 

shall be delivered to the other party by express mail with point‐by‐point tracking and such 

termination shall take effect twenty (20) days after the notice is deposited in the express mail, 

provided  that  the  failure  to  perform  has  not  been  remedied  by  that  time.    By  such 

termination, neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure 

to perform before the date of termination. 

 

(b)  Right of the CLIENT to Terminate for Convenience ‐ This Agreement may also be terminated 

by the CLIENT for reasons other than failure by the CONSULTANT to perform in a timely 

manner and proper manner its obligations under this Agreement.  A signed, written notice of 

such termination shall be delivered to CONSULTANT by fax or registered or certified mail 

and  such  termination  shall  take  effect not  less  than  seven  (7) days  following  the date  the 

notice is received by the CONSULTANT. 

 

10.4   Upon receipt of a notice of termination under any of the conditions under Paragraphs 6.3 or 10.3 

above, the CONSULTANT shall, unless the notice otherwise directs, immediately discontinue all 

services  in  connection with  the performance  of  this Agreement.   Within  thirty  (30) days  after 

receipt of the notice of termination, the CONSULTANT shall submit a Final Statement, showing 

the  services performed under  this Agreement prior  to  the  effective date of  termination.   Such 

Final Statement shall also include any unpaid amounts or unreimbursed expenses, as well as any 

financial  obligations  incurred  by  CONSULTANT  on  behalf  of  CLIENT  and  which  cannot 

reasonably be refunded  to CONSULTANT, all of which CLIENT agrees  to pay upon receipt of 

said Final Statement.  Data and study products prepared by the CONSULTANT and paid for by 

CLIENT under this Agreement shall be delivered to the CLIENT if requested. 

 

10.5  Notwithstanding  the  provisions  of  this Article X,  the CONSULTANT  shall  not  be  relieved  of 

liability to the CLIENT for damages sustained by the CLIENT by virtue of any negligent act or 

omission or any breach of the Agreement by the CONSULTANT. 

 

  ARTICLE XI 

  CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

11.1   Any  information  determined  to  be  confidential  that  is  provided  to  or  developed  by  the 

CONSULTANT in the performance of this Agreement shall be kept confidential and shall not be 

made available  to any  individual or organization by  the CONSULTANT without prior written 

approval of the CLIENT. 

77



 
Page 7 of 11 

 

ARTICLE XII 

  INSPECTION OF RECORDS 

 

12.1   The  CONSULTANT  shall maintain  accounts  and  records,  including  personnel,  property  and 

financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to this Agreement and 

such other records as may be deemed necessary by the CLIENT to assure proper accounting for 

all  project  funds.    These  records will  be  retained  for  three  years  after  the  expiration  of  this 

Agreement. 

 

12.2   Any  time during normal business hours and as  requested by  the CLIENT,  the CONSULTANT 

shall make available to the CLIENT for examination all of  its project records with respect to all 

matters  covered by  this Agreement and will allow  the CLIENT  to  review, examine, and make 

excerpts  from  such  records,  and  to make  copies  of  all  contracts,  invoices, materials,  payrolls, 

records of personnel conditions of employment, and other data relating to all matters covered by 

this Agreement.    The  financial  records  of  the CONSULTANT  are maintained  in  its  corporate 

office located in Sugar Land, Texas, and copies will be available upon request in a timely manner 

in this office for audit purposes to the CLIENT or its authorized representative. 

 

ARTICLE XIII 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

13.1   Insurance 

 

A.  The CONSULTANT agrees to maintain Worker’s Compensation Insurance to cover all of its 

own personnel  engaged  in performing  services  for  the CLIENT under  this  contract  in  the 

following amounts: 

 

Workmen’s Compensation:  Statutory 

 

B.    The  CONSULTANT  also  agrees  to  maintain  Commercial  General  Liability,  Business 

Automobile  Liability,  and  Umbrella  Liability  Insurance,  covering  claims  against  the 

CONSULTANT  for damages resulting  from bodily  injury, death, or property damage  from 

accidents arising  in  the  course of work performed under  this Agreement,  in  the  following 

amounts: 

 

Commercial  General  Liability  Insurance:  Personal  injury  and  property  damage  ‐‐ 

$500,000.00 combined single each occurrence and $500,000.00 aggregate; 

 

Business Automobile  Liability  for  all  vehicles:  Bodily  injury  and  property  damage  ‐‐ 

$500,000.00 combined single limit each occurrence; 

 

Umbrella Liability: $1,000,000.00 

 

13.2   Indemnity 

 

 A.  THE  CONSULTANT  AGREES  TO  INDEMNIFY,  DEFEND  AND  HOLD  HARMLESS 

CLIENT, ITS AGENTS, OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND 

78



 
Page 8 of 11 

 

ALL CLAIMS, DAMAGES, LIABILITIES, LOSSES, AND EXPENSES THAT ARISE OUT OF 

CONSULTANTʹS NEGLIGENCE OR  INTENTIONAL WRONGFUL ACTS OR OMISSIONS 

UNDER  THIS  AGREEMENT.  THE  CLIENT  AGREES  TO  INDEMNIFY,  DEFEND  AND 

HOLD HARMLESS CONSULTANT,  ITS AGENTS, OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES FROM 

AND  AGAINST  ANY  AND  ALL  CLAIMS,  DAMAGES,  LIABILITIES,  LOSSES,  AND 

EXPENSES  THAT  ARISE  OUT  OF  CLIENTʹS  NEGLIGENCE  OR  INTENTIONAL 

WRONGFUL ACTS OR OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. 

B.  CONSULTANT shall  indemnify and hold harmless the City of Hays, Kansas from any and 

all  losses, damages or expenses of any kind arising out of any and all claims, demands or 

causes of action initiated against the City of Hays, Kansas by competing entities bidding on 

the project which is the subject of this Agreement, provided such claims or causes of action 

are clearly based on alleged acts or omissions of CONSULTANT.  However, CONSULTANT 

does NOT indemnify or hold harmless the City of Hays, Kansas against losses, damages, or 

expenses of any kind are primarily based on allegations of wrongful acts or omissions of the 

City of Hays, Kansas. 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

14.1  Neither the CLIENT nor the CONSULTANT shall be required to perform any term, condition, or 

covenant of this AGREEMENT while such performance is delayed or prevented by acts of God, 

material  or  labor  restriction  by  any  governmental  authority,  terrorism,  civil  riot,  floods, 

hurricanes, or other natural disasters, any other cause not within the control of the CLIENT or the 

CONSULTANT  that  by  the  exercise  of  due  diligence  the  CLIENT  or  the  CONSULTANT  is 

unable, wholly  or  in  part,  to  prevent  or  overcome  and  supersedes  all  prior  agreements  and 

understanding  between  CLIENT  and  CONSULTANT  concerning  the  subject  matter  of  this 

Agreement. 

 

14.2  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT.  

No other agreements, amendments, modifications, implied or otherwise, shall be binding on any 

of the parties unless set forth in writing and signed by both parties. 

 

A.  Additionally,  the  CONSULTANT  shall  be  bound  by  the  conditions  and  provisions 

established in Part II, Chapter 2, Article XI of the City of Hays, Kansas Code of Ordinances, 

except as modified by Section 13.2(B) of this AGREEMENT. 

 

14.3  The CLIENT and the CONSULTANT agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Kansas.  Any legal dispute between the parties shall be resolved in 

the following manner: 

 

The  parties will  attempt  in  good  faith  to  resolve  any  controversy  or  claim  arising  out  of  or 

relating to this Agreement promptly by negotiation between senior executives of the parties who 

have the authority to settle the controversy. 

 

The disputing party shall give the other party written notice of the dispute.  Within ten days after 

receipt of said notice, the receiving party shall submit to the other a written response. The notice 

and  response  shall  include:    (a)  a  statement  of  each  party’s  position  and  a  summary  of  the 

79



 
Page 9 of 11 

 

evidence and arguments supporting its position; and (b) the name and title of the executive who 

will  represent  the  party.    The  executives  shall meet  at  a mutually  acceptable  time  and  place 

within  twenty days of  the date of  the disputing party’s notice  and  thereafter  as often  as  they 

reasonably  deem  necessary  to  exchange  relevant  information  and  to  attempt  to  resolve  the 

dispute. 

 

If the controversy or claim has not been resolved within thirty days of the meeting of the senior 

executives, the parties shall endeavor to settle the dispute by non‐binding mediation. 

 

If the matter has not been resolved pursuant to the aforesaid non‐binding mediation procedures 

within ninety days of the commencement of such procedure, parties are free to bring their claim 

in a court of law.  Venue for all actions brought pursuant to this agreement is in an Ellis County, 

Kansas  District  Court;  and  all  parties  consent  to  Ellis  County,  Kansas,  being  the  exclusive 

jurisdiction to resolved said claims or controversies arising pursuant to this agreement. 

 

14.4  If one or more of  the provisions of  this Agreement, or  the application of any provision  to any 

party or circumstance,  is held  invalid, unenforceable, or  illegal in any respect, the remainder of 

this  Agreement  and  the  application  of  the  provision  to  other  parties  or  circumstances  shall 

remain valid and in full force and effect. 

 

14.5  Any notice required to be given pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be 

in writing and shall be mailed by certified or registered mail addressed as set forth below or at 

such other address as may be specified by written notice: 

 

              CLIENT:    Toby Dougherty, City Manager 

    City of Hays, Kansas 

    PO Box 490 / 1507 Main Street 

    Hays, Kansas, 67601 

 

  CONSULTANT:  Bret C. Keast, President 

Kendig Keast Collaborative 

1415 Highway 6 South, Suite A‐300 

Sugar Land, Texas 77478 

 

14.6    The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a 

waiver of any subsequent breach of this Agreement. 

 

14.7    The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest on this Agreement, and shall not transfer any 

interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior written consent of 

the CLIENT thereto.  Provided however, that claims for money by the CONSULTANT from the 

CLIENT under  this Agreement may be assigned  to a bank,  trust company, or other  financial 

institution without such approval.   Written notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be 

furnished promptly to the CLIENT. 

 

14.8    Successors  and  Assigns:    The  CLIENT  and  the  CONSULTANT  each  binds  itself  and  its 

successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other parties of the Contract and to the 

successors,  executors,  administrators  and  assigns  of  such  other  parties,  in  respect  to  all 

80



 
Page 10 of 11 

 

covenants  of  this  Agreement.   Nothing  herein  shall  be  construed  as  creating  any  personal 

liability  on  the part  of  any  officer,  board member,  commissioner,  employee  or  agent  of  any 

public body, which is a party hereto. 

 

14.9    Reports and Information: The CONSULTANT, at such times and in such forms as the CLIENT 

may require, shall furnish the CLIENT such periodic reports as it may request pertaining to the 

work or services undertaken pursuant to this Agreement, the cost and obligations incurred or 

to be in connection therewith, and any other matter covered by this Agreement. 

 

14.10  Incorporation of Provisions Required by Law.  Each provision and clause required by law to be 

inserted into the Agreement shall be deemed to be enacted herein and this Agreement shall be 

read and enforced as though each were included herein.   If through mistake or otherwise any 

such provision  is not  inserted or  is not correctly inserted, the Agreement shall be amended to 

make such insertion on application by either party. 

 

14.11  Waiver.  The failure on the part of any party herein at any time to require the performance by 

any other party of any portion of  this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of, or  in any 

way affect that party’s rights to enforce such provision or any other provision.  Any waiver by 

any party herein of any provision hereof shall not be taken or held to be a waiver of any other 

provision hereof or any other breach hereof. 

 

14.12  Survival.   Any and all representations and conditions made by the CONSULTANT under this 

Agreement are of the essence of this Agreement and shall survive the execution, delivery and 

termination  of  it,  and  all  statements  contained  in  any  documents  required  by  the CLIENT, 

whether delivered at the time of the execution or at a later date, shall constitute representations 

hereunder. 

 

14.13  Cumulative Remedies.  In the event of default by any party herein, all other parties shall have 

all rights and remedies afforded to it at law or in equity to recover damages and to interpret or 

enforce the terms of this Agreement.  The exercise of any one right or remedy shall be without 

prejudice to the enforcement of any other right or remedy allowed at law or in equity. 

 

14.14  State or Federal Laws.  This Agreement is performed in Hays, Kansas, and, except as otherwise 

provided herein,  is  subject  to  all  applicable  Federal  and  State  laws,  statutes,  codes,  any  and 

applicable  permits,  ordinances,  rules,  orders,  and  regulations  of  any  local,  state,  or  federal 

government authority having or asserting jurisdiction. 

 

14.15  Equal Employment Opportunity.    In  the performance of  this Agreement,  the CONSULTANT 

will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 

religion,  age,  sex,  or  national  origin.    The  CONSULTANT  will,  in  all  solicitations  or 

advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of it, state that it is an Equal Opportunity 

Employer. 

 

14.16  Multiple Originals.   Two  (2) copies of  this Agreement are executed; each shall be deemed an 

original. 

 

 

81



 
Page 11 of 11 

 

*  *           *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement in duplicate originals in Hays, Kansas. 

 

This 10th day of April, 2014. 

 

 

FOR HAYS:            FOR KENDIG KEAST COLLABORATIVE: 

 

 

By:                                                   By:                                                    

  Toby Dougherty    Bret C. Keast, AICP 

City Manager    President              

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________ 

Brenda Kitchen 

City Clerk  

82



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 1 of 17 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

HAYS, KANSAS 

 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

I. 

INTRODUCTION 

Overview 

Under contract to the City of Hays, Kansas, Kendig Keast Collaborative (KKC) will provide professional 

community  planning  services  to  assist  the  City  in  reviewing  and  re‐writing  the  City’s  zoning  and 

subdivision regulations. This work will revise and develop new content (standards, criteria, procedures, 

etc.)  and  will  include  appropriate  graphics,  illustrations,  and  (in  the  on‐line  version  of  the  code) 

hyperlinks.  The  development  of  the  zoning  and  subdivision  regulations  will  build  upon  the  policy 

framework established with the recent adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, yet will still be guided by an 

inclusive,  public  outreach  /  public  participation  process  which  is  necessary  to  facilitate  community 

dialogue and decisions regarding how the regulations implement the “policy” framework. 

KKC’s project  involvement and  facilitation will be  carried out according  to  this Scope of Services and 

contingent upon  the  Support  Services  of  the City  outlined  in Exhibit  “B”  to  the Professional  Services 

Agreement  to make  the  best  use  of  the  available  consultant  budget.  The  City’s  Project Director will 

manage the overall process and direct the consultant in performing the project services. KKC will rely on 

the City Attorney to provide all necessary legal review and support on behalf of the City (i.e., KKC is not 

expected to provide or budget for separate legal counsel for the project). 

 

Project Schedule 

As indicated below under Project Administration, KKC will coordinate with City staff to set the specifics 

of a detailed and feasible project schedule for the execution and completion of this Scope of Services. The 

intent is to complete the work efforts outlined under Activities 1‐3 in approximately 10 months from the 

date KKC  receives Notice  to Proceed  from  the City  (plus  time  that may be necessary  to  complete any 

supplemental services beyond the current scope which the City may request). This will then set the stage 

for the public hearing by the Hays Area Planning Commission, immediately followed by a workshop by 

the City Commission. The process for the public hearing, workshop, and consideration of adoption by the 

City Commission  (outlined under Phase 4)  is expected  to span  four months, bringing  the entire project 

duration  to about 14 months. However, KKC  recogonizes  that  the public hearing and consideration of 

adoption process is at the City’s prerogative and not under KKC’s control. KKC will coordinate with City 

officials and staff to meet the desired timeline. This will require steady progress on the tasks in this Scope 

of Services; timely receipt of necessary data and information and other input from the City; and prompt 

review and feedback on KKC’s interim and final work products. 

 

83



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 2 of 17 

 

Project Administration 

KKC will  complete  project management  activities  in  coordination with  the  City’s  Project Director  to 

ensure schedule adherence, cost control and quality assurance. These activities will include: 

 A WebEx  teleconference project kick‐off meeting with key City staff  (following receipt of written 

Notice to Proceed from the City), to review the Scope of Services, detailed schedule, data/information 

needs,  and  other  project  logistics,  including  for  planned  public  outreach  activities  (see  Task  4, 

Logistics and Preliminaries). 

 A complete driving tour of the study area with City staff during the first on‐site visit. 

 Monthly  submittal  of written  progress  reports  in  conjunction with  each monthly  invoice.  These 

reports will describe  the project  status and document  significant work accomplished and activities 

scheduled  for  the next progress  report period,  as well as noting any  changes  in  scope, difficulties 

encountered, and steps taken to address them. 

 Preparation and maintenance  throughout  the project of a detailed project schedule,  including due 

dates  for all deliverables, anticipated meeting dates, plus  specified  review/comment  timeframes  to 

ensure adequate time for City review/approval of deliverables. 

 Frequent  communication and  coordination with  the City’s Project Director by email, phone, and 

written correspondence, as appropriate. 

 

II. 

CORE PROJECT SERVICES 

Introduction 

The core project services are divided  into  four distinct phases  that reflect our proven approach  for  this 

type of project. The tasks have been organized into this structure to ensure that the requirements of the 

City are met  in  the Scope of Services and  that  the process  is efficient and effective. The phases are:  (1) 

public participation; (2) analytic and strategic framework; (3) zoning and subdivision regulation drafting; 

and (3) adoption, delivery, and electronic publication. Supplemental services are also provided at the end 

of this Scope of Services in Section III, Supplemental Services. The cost of these supplemental services will 

be  in  addition  to  the  understood  project  budget  that will  be  used  to  fund  the  core  project  services 

presented in this section. 

 

PHASE 1: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

TASK 1 – Designing and Managing the Outreach and Education Process 

It is our experience that the design and management of the community outreach and education program 

is  largely  responsible  for  the  success  of  the  project.  This  is  particularly  important  for Hays  since  the 

regulations  are dated  and  thus, do not  reflect  current policies or practices, particularly  in  light of  the 

recently updated Comprehensive Plan. This warrants an engagement program  that provides  sufficient 

opportunities  for  stakeholders  and  the general  community  to be directly  involved  in  the  code  rewrite 

84



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 3 of 17 

 

process.  Perhaps  the most  important  aspect  of  this  program  though,  is  the  structure  and  delivery  of 

public education materials.  Information  that  is released  to  the public must be readily available, easy  to 

understand, and written in a manner that relates to everyone. 

TASK 2 – Providing Public Information 

Providing information to and interacting with the public will be in accordance with the following: 

1. A  sign‐in  sheet will  be  available  at  each  public meeting  to  solicit  the  name,  representation,  and 

contact information (physical and E‐mail addresses) of those who choose to participate. These sign‐in 

sheets will be collected and provided  to  staff  to maintain a  record of attendance and  to develop a 

contact list for notice of future public input opportunities.  

2. The City will be responsible for posting the agendas of scheduled meetings similar to other required 

public  meeting  notices.  KKC  will  be  responsible  for  providing  to  City  staff  10  days  prior  to  a 

scheduled  public meeting  an  electronic meeting  notice, which will  be  emailed  by  the City  to  the 

project participants. In this way, the official meeting notice is from the City. 

3. (Optional) If the City contracts with KKC to create, host, and update a designated project web site, 

KKC will  create  and  upload  information  at  the  outset  of  the  project  including  a  brief  narrative 

description  of  the  project,  a  general  description  of what will  (and will  not)  be  addressed  in  the 

project, a tentative calendar of public meetings and input opportunities, key contacts at the City, and 

information about the consultant. Project web site updates throughout the duration of the project will 

be undertaken as specified in the proposed project schedule in the response to the RFP, but generally 

includes an update before and after each meeting and consists of meeting agendas, summaries, and 

draft  deliverables  (including  PDFs  of  the  PowerPoint  presentations,  the  Proposed  Strategic 

Assessment and Annotated Outline, pertinent handouts at meetings, meeting summaries, and draft 

regulations). 

4. As part of  the project orientation  teleconference, KKC and  the City will establish protocol as  to  the 

handling of press  interviews, particularly KKC’s role and any necessary approvals, and the process 

for providing input to and by the City on meeting notices, as well as articles (by KKC or the City) in 

advance of the midpoint briefing of the City Commission and the Hays Area Planning Commission 

public hearing. 

5. KKC will provide a meeting agenda, PDFs of PowerPoint presentations, and other draft deliverables 

in electronic format prior  to  the  joint Hays Area Planning Commission  / City Commission meeting 

(introductory meeting),  the  joint Hays Area Planning Commission  / City Commission meeting  (to 

discuss and approve the Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline), the three Hays Area 

Planning Commission meetings (to discuss  the  three code modules and zoning map),  the midpoint 

City Commission briefing (which will be scheduled during the same trip where Module 2 of the code 

is discussed),  and  for  the public hearing. These materials may be disseminated by  the City  to  the 

press  for  any  pre‐  and/or  post‐meeting  articles.  The City will  be  responsible  for  reproducing  the 

meeting materials and disseminating them to the designated attendees (e.g., the Hays Area Planning 

Commission, City Commission, etc.). 

6. Following the joint meeting regarding the Proposed Strategic Approach Annotated Outline, KKC will 

provide a brief bulleted summary to document the essential meeting outcomes and decisions. 

85



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 4 of 17 

 

TASK 3 – Engaging the Public 

The engagement activities are spelled out in the individual tasks set out in Phase 2, Analytic and Strategic 

Framework, below. 

 

PHASE 2: ANALYTIC AND STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK 

TASK 4 – Logistics and Preliminaries 

A project orientation WebEx  teleconference meeting with key staff members will be held  following  the 

Notice to Proceed. The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss project logistics (overall project goals, 

tentative schedule, communication protocol, interagency coordination, contact database); arrange for the 

delivery of applicable City documents, maps, and data to KKC; identify potential stakeholder groups for 

interviews  (including  county  representatives).  Additionally,  this  meeting  and  other  meetings  with 

departmental staff (while on‐site) will be used to discuss the zoning and subdivision ordinances and their 

warranted amendments. 

Meetings(s): 

 Project orientation WebEx teleconference meeting with Project Director and applicable City staff. 

Deliverable(s): 

 Project schedule. 

 

TASK 5 – Review and Incorporate Existing Documents 

KKC will  complete  a  review of  the City’s  existing planning documents  (master plans,  land use plans, 

hazard mitigation  plans,  etc.),  zoning  and  subdivision  regulations,  infrastructure mapping,  and  other 

documents provided by the City. This review will provide the basis for the work in Tasks 10, 11, and 12, 

regarding  the development and approval of  the Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline, 

and, Phase 3, Zoning and Subdivision Regulation Drafting, and will provide background information for the 

completion of Task 8, Interview Stakeholders and Task 9, Conduct Field Reconnaissance. 

Meetings(s): No meetings are required for this task. 

Deliverable(s): No specific deliverables are required for this task. 

 

TASK 6 – Introduction to Hays Area Planning Commission/City Commission 

KKC will present an overview of the project (scope, schedule, participation activities, deliverables, etc.) 

and  facilitate discussion  as  to  the  existing  ordinances,  their  strengths  and weaknesses,  and  requested 

changes and directions. This joint meeting will be open to the public. 

Meeting(s): (TRIP No. 1) 

 Joint meeting with the Hays Area Planning Commission, City Commission, and the public. 

 

86



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 5 of 17 

 

Deliverable(s): 

 Adobe PDF of PowerPoint presentation. 

 

TASK 7 – (Optional) Launch Project Web Site 

If the City contracts with KKC to create and maintain a project web site, KKC will secure a domain name, 

design the framework for a project web site, and launch the web site after approval by the City. The web 

site will be  for  the purpose of keeping  the public  informed  as  to  their opportunities  for  involvement, 

upcoming meetings  and  events,  and  postings  of  draft  deliverables.  See  also  Task  2,  Providing  Public 

Information,  subsection  3,  for  a  complete description of what will be uploaded  and maintained on  the 

project web site.  

Meeting(s): No meetings are required for this task. 

Deliverable(s): 

 (OPTIONAL) Project web site linked to the City web site. 

 

TASK 8 – Interview Stakeholders 

KKC will interview project stakeholders (identified in Task 4) in up to six, one‐hour “listening sessions” 

conducted over  two, one‐half days, which are  intended  to provide  flexibility  for  invitees.  If an  invitee 

cannot attend the session most pertinent to them, they can join another session if interested. City staff will 

be responsible for  inviting the select  individuals. Each session should  include a range of 12 to no more 

than  15  attendees  to  ensure  effective  dialogue.  The  purpose  of  these  sessions  is  to  discover  the  key 

regulatory and procedural issues facing Hays. 

A second part of the interview process will include meetings over the course of one‐half day with groups 

of  City  staff members  (i.e.,  public works,  legal,  Fire/Police,  parks,  and  utilities)  to  understand  their 

processes, procedures, and practices, as well as  to gain a  firsthand understanding of  the  limitations or 

problems with  the  administration  and  enforcement  of  the  current  regulations,  as well  as  the  internal 

process  of  staff  review  and  the  public  approval  processes.  This  is  an  essential  step  to  coordinate  the 

development  process  and  identify  means  for  coordinating  between  departments  and  with  other 

governmental agencies. In addition, as part of this one‐half day portion of the interviews, KKC will also 

interview members of the City Commission in small groups. 

Meeting(s): (TRIP No. 1) 

 Up to six, one‐hour small group listening sessions. 

 One, two‐hour meeting with applicable City staff members. 

 Up to three meetings with a group of no more than two City Commission members. 

 

Deliverable(s): No specific deliverables are required for this task. 

 

 

87



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 6 of 17 

 

TASK 9 – Conduct Field Reconnaissance 

KKC will conduct field reconnaissance to identify the type, pattern, and character of existing land uses, 

observe  development  outcomes,  and  note  general  areas  of  improvement. During  the  reconnaissance, 

KKC will develop a  folder of photographs  to document observed conditions and  for use  in conveying 

ideas as to development outcomes.  

Meeting(s): No meetings are required for this task. 

Deliverable(s): None;  coordination with  City  staff will  be  necessary,  but mapping  is  undertaken  for 

analysis purposes only for the zoning map update. 

 

TASK 10 – Proposed Strategic Approach 

The purpose of the Proposed Strategic Approach is to examine the relationship of the existing regulations 

to  the  policy  directions  of  the  recently  adopted  Comprehensive  Plan,  as  well  as  the  practices  and 

preferences of the community and its leadership. As such, the Proposed Strategic Approach will narrow 

the  gap  between  the  City’s  policies  and  practices,  and  seek  to  achieve  its  objectives  and  preferred 

development  and procedural outcomes. The document will help  to make  strategic decisions  as  to  the 

approach  to  the  new  zoning  and  subdivision  regulations.  Phase  3,  Zoning  and  Subdivision  Regulation 

Drafting, will  rely  on  the  Proposed  Strategic  Approach, meaning  that  it will  guide  the work  in  the 

subsequent phases. Generally, the strategic document will set out: 

 A  strategic  approach  for  writing  any  new  zoning  and  subdivision  regulations  and  revising  the 

existing regulations. The approach will analyze the applicability of different regulatory approaches, 

including conventional zoning, character‐based and  form‐based codes, performance standards, or a 

hybrid approach. 

 Means for simplifying and streamlining development procedures (at a strategic level). 

 Issues  concerning  the  mapping  of  zoning  districts,  potential  coding  problems,  and  key  legal 

concerns and considerations. 

 Issues of  compliance with  state  and  federal  law  (e.g., Telecommunications Act; RLUIPA; PRB‐1; 

Fair Housing Act,  and  so  forth),  and  opportunities  that may  be  provided  by  the City’s Charter 

Ordinances and Kansas State Statutes. 

 A brief  assessment of  the  recently  adopted Comprehensive Plan  as  to  its policy  framework  and 

consistencies  (or  inconsistencies) with  the zoning and subdivision regulations, as well as areas of 

silence or deficiency. 

 

Meeting(s):  

 Informal discussion WebEx teleconference meetings with City staff, as requested by KKC. 

 

 

88



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 7 of 17 

 

Deliverable(s): 

 Proposed Strategic Approach, delivered via email in Adobe PDF format for electronic distribution 

and (OPTIONAL) posting on the project web site (Note: the Proposed Strategic Approach and the 

Annotated Outline will be combined into a single document). 

 

TASK 11 – Annotated Outline 

An annotated outline will provide a table of contents showing proposed content and organization of the 

new  zoning and  subdivision  regulations. Minor  changes  to  the order of  sections within  the  code may 

occur  as  the  code  drafting  progresses. Major  changes,  however, may  require  an  amendment  if  they 

materially add to the content of the code or constitute a substantive change to its structure. 

Subsequent  code  development  will  depend  upon  this  Proposed  Strategic  Approach  and  Annotated 

Outline.  Therefore,  Phase  3,  Zoning  and  Subdivision  Regulation  Drafting, will  not  commence  until  the 

Proposed  Strategic  Approach  and  Annotated  Outline  are  accepted  by  the  Hays  Areas  Planning 

Commission and City Commission at a joint meeting (see Task 12, regarding building consensus). 

Meeting(s):  

 Informal discussion WebEx teleconference meetings with City staff, as requested by KKC. 

Deliverable(s): 

 Annotated Outline of each section of the new regulatory provisions, delivered via email in Adobe 

PDF format for electronic distribution and (OPTIONAL) posting on the project web site (Note: the 

Proposed Strategic Approach and the Annotated Outline will be combined into a single document). 

 

TASK 12 – Build Consensus Regarding  the Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline of 

the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations 

Following the completion of the Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline, KKC will facilitate 

a joint meeting with the Hays Area Planning Commission, Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals, and City 

Commission  to obtain essential  feedback and build consensus on  the strategic directions of  the project 

before proceeding with any Phase 3 work (i.e., the regulatory drafting). In areas where such consensus is 

not yet attained in the document, as a reflection of the early public and leadership discussions, KKC will 

make one round of appropriate changes to the document to reflect further direction from the Hays Area 

Planning Commission to guide Phase 3 activities. 

As part of this task, project budget considerations must also be taken into account in case the regulatory 

assessment and stakeholder input indicates a larger array – or complexity – of issues on the agenda than 

can be addressed with the available budget. If so, then KKC will coordinate with the Hays Area Planning 

Commission and staff to prioritize the needed amendments and determine how to proceed. 

 

 

89



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 8 of 17 

 

Meeting(s): (TRIP No. 2) 

 Joint  meeting  with  the  Hays  Planning  Commission  and  City  Commission  to  make  an  initial 

presentation of the Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline and to obtain agreement 

for drafting the regulations. 

 A follow‐up meeting with City staff. 

Deliverable(s): 

 Presentation materials  for  joint meeting with  the Hayes Area Planning Commission, Hays Area 

Board of Zoning Appeals, and the City Commission. 

 Final Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline. 

 

PHASE 3: ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATION DRAFTING 

TASK 13 – Draft and Deliver Code Modules 

The zoning and subdivision regulations will be drafted, presented, and discussed in three code modules. 

The modules approach helps to facilitate discussion with the Hays Area Planning Commission and staff 

in an  iterative fashion. The number, content and order of the modules will be outlined  in the Proposed 

Strategic  Approach  and  Annotated  Outline  based  on  the  issues  and  existing  regulatory  provisions 

identified as needing attention – and with the intent of breaking down the new and amended regulatory 

provisions into manageable pieces for ease of review and discussion. KKC represents that it is competent 

to prepare the finished product in the drafting stage.  It will do all necessary research regarding land use 

regulation and do all acts necessary to draft all regulations in ordinance form from start to finish, subject 

to editing and proofreading by the City. KKC will be allowed to rely on the City to review the proposed 

regulations and ordinances when submitted in final draft form and rely upon the City to ensure through 

that review that the proposed ordinances and regulations comply with legal requirements in Kansas. 

KKC personnel will complete the drafting and revision work through the enCode‐90TM online  interface. 

The site design will be consistent with City branding. This will also enable KKC to accept, address and 

catalog staff review comments throughout the process (username and password  issued to City staff for 

site  access). The  site  framework will  include  the  standard  features  available  in  enCode‐90TM,  and will 

allow  for  incorporation of  the added  features and  functionality  that are available  through  the enCode‐

180TM and enCode‐360TM upgrade options should the City choose to authorize these. 

KKC will develop regulatory language for the zoning and subdivision regulations based on the agreed to 

Proposed  Strategic  Approach  and  Annotated  Outline,  input  received  at  the  Hays  Area  Planning 

Commission work  sessions,  and  through  close  coordination with  the City’s Project Director and other 

members of City  staff,  as  applicable. All deliverables will be provided by City  staff  to  the Hays Area 

Board of Zoning Appeals and the City Commission, who will be invited to attend and observe the Hays 

Area Planning Commission work sessions. Alternatively, a representative could be selected by the City so 

that one person is responsible for regularly communicating with their respective boards and representing 

their  interests  at  the  Hays  Area  Planning  Commission  work  sessions.  Staff  will  be  responsible  for 

90



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 9 of 17 

 

regularly reporting to each board on the status of the project and providing a forum to receive their input. 

Substantive input received by staff will be provided to KKC in written form. 

Another core objective for this task is to determine the “comfort level” with varying potential degrees of 

regulation, and where to “set the bar” on various types of zoning and subdivision regulations. This will 

include frank and constructive discussion of whether the potential regulatory framework will truly align 

with and advance expressed community planning goals and priorities. 

Meeting(s): (TRIP Nos. 3, 4, and 5) 

 Interim WebEx  teleconference meetings with City  staff, as needed/requested by KKC,  to discuss 

regulatory  strategies,  the  relationships  to  existing  standards  and  procedures,  and  other 

administrative matters. 

 For each code module, the following meetings will be held: 

› A  meeting  with  City  staff  held  on  the  afternoon  prior  to  or  the  morning  following  the 

scheduled Hays Area Planning Commission work session. 

› One evening meeting/work  session with  the Hays Area Planning Commission  to discuss  the 

respective code module, which will be open to the public. 

› Up to two, one‐hour meetings with City identified key interest groups to discuss the directions 

of the regulatory provisions and to seek input and consensus. 

 One midpoint briefing of the City Commission on a regularly scheduled meeting date to present a 

project  status  report  covering  the work  completed  to date and key  issues  and  consensus points. 

This meeting will be coordinated with other scope activities to occur on Trip No. 4. 

Deliverable(s): 

 Three draft modules with the proposed new and amended zoning and subdivision regulations, and 

with  associated  illustrations  in  a  quantity  that  is  feasible  to  produce within  the  available  project 

budget will be delivered  to  the City  in enCode‐90TM  for staff  review and comment, and also  in an 

Adobe  PDF  format  emailed  to  City’s  Project  Director  for  further  distribution  to  the  Hays  Area 

Planning Commission, and (OPTIONAL) posting on the project web site. 

  An accompanying memorandum with each draft module (Adobe PDF file emailed to City’s Project 

Director for further internal distribution) that, as applicable: 

› Provides supporting commentary, especially regarding the nature of and rationale for proposed 

changes from or additions to existing regulatory provisions; 

› Points out key policy issues and decision items; 

› Highlights links to and/or implications for other sections of the existing overall zoning ordinance, 

or other City Code chapters; and 

 Revised draft modules assembled  into a Discussion Draft Zoning and Subdivision Regulations  for 

electronic distribution and (OPTIONAL) posting on the project web site. 

 

 

91



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 10 of 17 

 

TASK 14 – Prepare Draft Citywide Zoning Map 

KKC  will  provide  strategic  directions  regarding  the  mapping  of  the  proposed  zoning  districts  by 

describing  the  circumstances  in which  each  zone  is  applied,  and  by  providing  a  general  framework 

through KKC’s analysis of existing development character (see Task 9, Conduct Field Reconnaissance). City 

staff will use the strategic materials and general framework to revise and refine the zoning map, which 

will be considered concurrently with Task 13, Draft and Deliver Code Modules. Development of this map 

will be based on the adopted future land use plan (which may warrant amendment by the City or KKC 

on a Supplemental Services basis) and  the established zoning districts. Generally,  the zoning map will 

align three primary influences: 

 The existing nature of development in terms of use and physical character; 

 The  desired  pattern,  character,  and  use  of  future  development  as  identified  in  adopted  policy 

documents; and 

 The  specific  regulations and allowances  for  the various zoning districts drafted  in Task 13, Draft 

and Deliver Code Modules.  

Development of the draft zoning map will require the following work activities: 

 Complete GIS and aerial photography review, which will be done by KKC  in the development of 

the existing development character working map; 

 Analyze  the closeness of  fit between  the zoning districts and  the existing  land use and character, 

which  will  be  done  by  KKC  in  developing  the  strategic  direction  for  mapping  the  proposed 

districts; and 

 Develop  the draft zoning map, which will be  completed by  the City’s Planning,  Inspection, and 

Enforcement (PIE) Division using its GIS map data such that the City’s conventions and standards 

are maintained and consistently applied for ongoing code and zoning map administration. 

Meeting(s): (TRIP Nos. 4 and 5) 

 Hays Area Planning Commission work  session  to present  and discuss  the Draft Citywide Zoning 

Map.  These  discussions will  occur  during  the  same meetings  as  the  discussion  of  the  regulatory 

provisions per each code module. 

Deliverable(s): 

 A memorandum outlining strategic direction  for mapping  the proposed zoning districts. The draft 

zoning map will be scheduled for completion concurrent with Module No. 2, which will allow review 

and  discussion  during  Trip  Nos.  4  and  5.  The  draft  Citywide  Zoning  Map  will  be  submitted 

electronically (ArcMap shapefile format) for electronic distribution and (OPTIONAL) posting on the 

project web site. 

 

TASK 15 – Publish Code Modules and Public Hearing Draft of Zoning and Subdivision Regulations 

and Zoning Map 

KKC will refine the Draft Zoning and Subdivision Regulations and Citywide Zoning Map based on the 

feedback received during Tasks 13 and 14. Documentation of the requested revisions by the City’s Project 

92



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 11 of 17 

 

Director in enCode‐90TM on a section by section basis will help ensure accuracy of the changes, efficient 

use of  the City’s budget, and a historical  record of  the  changes made. Alternately, a memorandum of 

recommended  revisions prepared by  the City’s Project Director and provided  to KKC will prompt  the 

revisions to the regulatory provisions. 

KKC will evaluate the nature and significance of the requested revisions relative to the project scope and 

the  strategic directions of  the project  to  this point. The  requested  changes  that are  consistent with  the 

project scope and strategic directions of the project are  included  in the revisions to assemble the public 

hearing draft. Major  revisions  or  shifts  in  the  strategic  or policy directions,  however, may  require  an 

amendment  if  they materially  add  to  the  content of  the  code or  constitute  a  substantive  change  to  its 

structure. All revisions will be  first documented as red‐lined edits  in enCode‐90TM,  followed by a clean 

public  hearing  draft,  inclusive  of  all  tables,  graphics,  illustrations,  definitions  and  appendices,  as 

applicable.  

Meeting(s): 

 Up  to  two  WebEx  teleconferences  with  City  staff  to  discuss  the  on‐going  development  of  the 

revisions to the code modules. 

Deliverable(s): 

 Public Hearing Draft Zoning and Subdivision Regulations and Citywide Zoning Map from assembly 

of the refined modules into a consolidated package, and reflecting further adjustments made by the 

Hays Area Planning Commission during this task (in enCode‐90TM for staff review and comment, and 

also  in  an Adobe PDF  file  emailed  to City’s Project Director  for  further distribution  and web  site 

posting by staff). 

 

 

PHASE 4: ADOPTION, DELIVERY, AND ELECTRONIC PUBLICATION 

TASK 16 – Conduct Adoption Hearings 

KKC will coordinate with City staff  in preparation  for a  joint public hearing,  to assist  in documenting 

further revisions recommended by the Hays Area Planning Commission in making its final report to the 

City Commission, and  to complete  final project activities  leading up  to and after  the City Commission 

adoption. 

Meeting(s): (TRIP No. 6) 

 A joint public hearing of the Hays Area Planning Commission (TRIP No. 6) and City Commission to 

present  the  Final  Zoning  and  Subdivision  Regulations  and Citywide  Zoning Map  at which  time 

public comments will be accepted and a recommendation will be given by the Hays Area Planning 

Commission. 

 An independent meeting with the City Commission (TRIP No. 6) will be held after the public hearing 

to discuss the comments received and to determine the necessary and advisable changes to the Final 

Zoning  and  Subdivision Regulations  or Citywide Zoning Map.  This meeting will  also  be  for  the 

purpose  of  facilitating  a  question/answer  session  with  the  City  Commission  prior  to  their 

consideration of the code and map for adoption. 

93



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 12 of 17 

 

 KKC will be available  to attend  the separate public hearing by  the City Commission  to present  the 

Final Zoning and Subdivision Regulations for consideration of adoption on a Supplemental Services 

basis (see Optional Task 22). 

Deliverable(s): 

 Overview presentation for public hearing (PowerPoint file forwarded to City’s Project Director prior 

to hearing). 

 Final Zoning and Subdivision Regulations  inclusive of all  tables, graphics,  illustrations, definitions 

and appendices, as applicable. 

Note:  Staff  training workshops may  be  handled  as  an  optional  service  as  part  of Optional  Task  18, 

regarding training, outlined below. 

 

TASK 17 – Publish the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations Electronically 

Following adoption, including any further adjustments made through final City Commission review and 

deliberation, KKC will deliver a final clean version of the as‐adopted zoning and subdivision regulations, 

and  work  with  enCode‐360,  LLC  (our  subconsultant)  to  publish  them  online  via  enCode‐90TM.  The 

username  and  password  provided  earlier  in  the  project will  enable City  staff  to maintain  the  online 

version beyond the project conclusion. 

Meeting(s): No meetings are required for this task. 

Deliverable(s): 

 Electronic files in Microsoft Word and Adobe PDF; 

 One  reproducible  hard‐copy  color  print  of  the  final  adopted  regulatory  provisions,  including  all 

tables, illustrations and any related attachments; 

 Web‐based access in enCode‐90TM. 

 

APPROACH TO DELIVERABLES 

It will be  the  responsibility of  the City’s Project Director  to  coordinate  and  compile  in  a  consolidated 

manner all review comments on and requested/suggested revisions to each interim deliverable, beyond 

those  comments provided directly  to KKC personnel during project meetings. City  staff will assemble 

and enter the comments and requested revisions into enCode‐90TM. 

KKC will be responsible for one unified round of revisions after submitting each major deliverable and 

receiving  comments  and  direction  from  the  City  as  described  above.  This  includes  revisions  to  the 

Proposed Strategic Approach and Annotated Outline under Tasks 10, 11, and 12; the draft modules under 

Tasks 13 and 14, resulting in the Public Hearing Draft under Task 15; and further refinement of the Public 

Hearing Draft through the  joint hearing and official consideration steps, leading to the as‐adopted final 

ordinance version under Tasks 16 and 17. 

 

 

94



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 13 of 17 

 

ENCODE‐90TM SET UP 

Initial Set Up: 

KKC will coordinate with enCode‐360, LLC and the City to discuss the project logistics and schedule, as 

well as to determine project specifications. enCode‐360, LLC staff will build and set up the web site for 

the City, including a “home page” with a standardized structure in which graphics, text styles, text copy, 

and colors are selected by the City. 

The City will  identify  a  Project Administrator who will  be  responsible  for  coordinating  the work  of 

enCode‐360, LLC  staff, providing  any necessary  information with  respect  to  the project  specifications, 

and for reviewing, monitoring, and approving the work of enCode‐360, LLC.   

enCode‐360,  LLC  staff will  launch  the  enCode‐90TM  (or  as  upgraded  to  enCode‐180o  or  360o)  and,  if 

applicable, optional features (e.g., calculators) selected by the City. The Build Fees and the first‐year only 

Annual License Fee (but not the Annual License Fees for subsequent years) for the enCode‐90 TM version 

are included as part of this code project. 

Upon completion of the initial setup, KKC will draft the three code modules in enCode‐90 TM so that it can 

be  accessed  via  the  enCode‐90TM  online  User  Module  (public  access)  and  Maintenance  Module 

(password‐protected editor access). 

During  the drafting of code modules, KKC staff will “tag” appropriately  formatted cross‐references  for 

the purpose of internal and/or external hyperlinking. 

Upon completion, enCode‐360, LLC staff will conduct a quality‐control  review of  the newly  formatted 

zoning and subdivision  regulations  to ensure  that all hyperlinks and pop‐up definitions are  functional 

and appropriately directed and that all graphics and tables are properly formatted, readable, and highly 

presentable. 

Upon  completion,  enCode‐360,  LLC  staff  will  publish  the  newly  adopted  zoning  and  subdivision 

regulations,  which  will  be  available  only  to  the  Project  Administrator  and  other  authorized  City 

personnel. 

Training on enCode‐90 TM Maintenance Module will be provided to the Project Administrator and other 

authorized City personnel  so  that  amendments  can be drafted  in  enCode‐90  TM  and  the City  can  self‐

codify in the future. 

An  in‐depth User Guide  is  integrated  into  enCode‐90  TM  to  cover  all aspects of drafting  and updating 

regulations in the enCode‐90 TM software system. 

 

III. 

SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES 

During the course or at the conclusion of the project, the City may deem  it necessary to schedule more 

meetings, request further issues research, or otherwise engage KKC personnel in additional work efforts 

not anticipated at project  initiation and not  included  in  this Scope of Services. Any such supplemental 

services  shall be specifically authorized by  the City Manager or City Commission, as appropriate, and 

documented  through  a written  amendment  to  the  Scope of Services  and  approval of  a  corresponding 

95



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 14 of 17 

 

increase  in  the maximum  not‐to‐exceed  amount—and,  if necessary,  the  time  of  performance—of  the 

original professional services agreement. 

 

Potential supplemental services or follow‐on work phases could include, but not be limited to: 

 Facilitated Training on the new Zoning and Subdivision Regulations (Optional Task 18); 

 Produce and Provide a Development Guidebook (Optional Task 19); 

 Project web site (Optional Task 20 and highlighted in Task 7); 

 Unified Development Code (Optional Task 21); 

 Additional Trips / Meetings (Optional Task 22); and 

 On‐Line Publication of the Official Zoning Map (Optional Task 23). 

 

OPTIONAL TASK 18 – Facilitate Training on the new Zoning and Subdivision Regulations 

On  a  supplemental  services  basis,  KKC  will  provide  on‐site  training  for members  of  the  Planning, 

Inspection, and Enforcement  (P.I.E.) Department  and  the  staff of other departments who  together, are 

responsible  for  application  receipt,  plan  review,  inspection,  and  enforcement,  as  well  as  zoning 

administration,  and members  of  the Hays  Area  Planning  Commission, Hays  Area  Board  of  Zoning 

Appeals, and City Commission meetings. The training will include: 

 A  detailed  overview  of  the  code,  including  its  general  principles,  relationship  to  the 

Comprehensive Plan, and  the  specific provisions  that are  the  responsibility of different staff and 

departments. 

 A “how to” work session on the use the code for the review of applications. 

 Mock review of different application types. 

 An overview of the procedures and processes. 

In addition, the training will cover: 

 Application completeness review. 

 Scheduling and managing pre‐application conferences. 

 Responsibilities of an intra‐departmental review team. 

 Preparation  of  staff  reports  to  the  Hays  Area  Planning  Commission,  Hays  Area  Board  of 

Adjustment, and the City Commission. 

 

OPTIONAL TASK 19 – Produce and Provide a Development Guidebook  

Since the Zoning and Subdivision standards will include new provisions of approval, as well as permits 

and processes, KKC will produce a Development Guidebook that outlines the application processes for 

prospective applicants. The guidebook will include a summary of processes and procedures for each type 

96



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 15 of 17 

 

of approval or permit covered by the new regulations, and flowcharts and schedules for the development 

application and approval processes. 

 

The  Development  Guidebook  will  include  an  appendix  of  application  forms  and  checklists  for  the 

approvals and permits that are covered by the new regulations, as well as model staff report forms. The 

forms and checklists are  intended  to ensure  that all  information  that  is needed  to properly process an 

application is provided. The forms will be developed in electronic “fill‐in” format so that applicants can 

easily fill them in from their computers, and readily understand the information they are to provide.  

 

The guidebook will be posted on the City’s enCode‐90TM website for easy download. 

 

OPTIONAL TASK 20 – Create and Maintain a Dedicated Project Web Site 

As part of this supplemental service, KKC will build the framework for a project web site which will be 

regularly  updated  during  the  project,  and which will  include  general  information,  project  news  and 

updates,  participation  information  and  opportunities,  and  project  documents,  such  as  schedules, 

presentations, and the draft regulations as they are developed. The web site will be updated in advance 

of each meeting and within 48 hours of any major meeting or project milestone with photos, documents, 

and other relevant information. 

 

OPTIONAL TASK 21 – Incorporate Additional Provisions to Produce a UDC 

Over  the past  two decades, cities across  the country have migrated  toward unified development codes 

(UDC’s)  to  achieve  a more  coordinated  set of development  regulations,  standards,  and procedures. A 

UDC yields the following benefits: 

 Consolidates  all  development‐related  ordinances  into  a  single  unified  document.  This  helps  to 

ensure  consistency  among  the different  components  and promotes  a more holistic  evaluation of 

development requirements and standards by both applicants and the City. 

 Makes the regulatory specifics easier to navigate and comprehend (e.g., more “user friendly”) for 

the development, real estate and consultant communities. A single consolidated  index and better 

cross‐referencing  across  code  sections helps  to  ensure  that  all  relevant provisions  are  taken  into 

account pertaining to any particular development issue or proposal. 

 Condenses  into  one  code  section  all  administrative  procedures  and  considerations,  helping  to 

streamline  and make  clearer  the  roles  and  responsibilities  of  each  official  and  decision‐making 

body. 

 Offers a  consolidated  list of definitions, which helps  to prevent  inconsistencies and questions of 

interpretation between ordinances. 

 Greatly  improves  the  City’s  ability  to  track  the  total  development  process  because  various 

components are organized by functional topic and coordinated in a logical, sequential order. 

97



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 16 of 17 

 

 Simplifies and streamlines the process for future ordinance amendments and enhancements. 

Upon  request,  KKC  will  be  available  to  amend  the  Scope  of  Services  to  undertake  and  more 

comprehensive review and rewrite of all  the development regulations so  that  they can be consolidated 

into  a UDC  to  create  a more  usable  and  development‐friendly  set  of  regulations. Generally,  this  can 

include an expanded Scope of Services to incorporate the following additional regulations from the City 

Code of Ordinances: 

 Chapter 2, Article VI, Division 2, Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals; 

 Chapter 11, Article X, Uniform Addressing System; 

 Chapter 14, Article VI, Adult Entertainment Businesses; 

 Chapter 35, Floods; 

 Chapter 53, Stormwater Management (portions related to development design). 

 

OPTIONAL  TASK  22  –  Additional  Committee,  Public  Information,  or  Hays  Area  Planning 

Commission/City Commission Meetings 

KKC will be available to attend additional meetings through the course of the rewrite process. Additional 

meetings  that  occur within  the  established  project  schedule  (i.e., while  KKC  is  already  on‐site  for  a 

meeting  spelled  out  in  this  Scope  of  Services)  will  be  at  no  additional  charge.  Those  that  require 

additional time to be spent on‐site will be billed for that time and those that require a separate, additional 

trip will be billed for the corresponding time and expenses. 

Other  additional on‐site meetings will be  invoiced  separately as provided  in  the  table below. This  fee 

schedule  accounts  for  on‐site  time  and  time  for pre‐meeting preparation  and post‐meeting  follow‐up, 

plus direct expenses.  

Additional Meeting Fee Schedule1 

Title One overnight stay Two overnight stay 

Principal $3,800 $5,200 

Senior Associate $3,400 $4,650 

Associate $3,100 $4,225 

 

OPTIONAL TASK 23 – On‐Line Publication of the Official Zoning Map in enCode‐180° or 360° and 

Hosted by ESRI ArcGIS Online 

As part of this supplemental service, KKC would publish the Official Zoning Map through the enCode‐

180° or enCode‐360° software versions,2 allowing users the ability to view, zoom in/out, and pan around 

the map, as well as to select an individual parcel or zoning district to navigate to the relevant section of 

the code. The options include: 

                                                            
1 Assumes 21 day advance notice; subject to change relative to increases in travel costs. 
2 Requires the upgrade of the enCode‐90TM software to the 180° or 360° software versions. 

98



Exhibit “A” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 17 of 17 

 

 Option  1  – GIS  Static Map  (enCode‐360TM  hosted):  This  feature  includes  an  online mapping 

system hosted on  the enCode‐360TM server, which displays a static zoning map  (in Adobe PDF) 

with  hyperlinks  to  display  a  description  about  each  of  the  districts  and  a  live  link  established 

through enCode‐180° or enCode‐360° software to the corresponding district standards. This option 

will require regular updating, reposting, and re‐establishing of the links to the district standards. 

 Option  2  –  ESRI Hosted ArcGIS Online:  This  feature  includes  an  ESRI  hosted ArcGIS  online 

mapping system  that  is  licensed  to and managed by  the City. The online map would display  the 

zoning  layer  (and  other  layers,  as  available),  together with  a  description  about  a  user‐selected 

district  (or parcel, as applicable) and a  live  link established  through  the enCode‐180° or enCode‐

360° software  to  the corresponding district standards. The client would maintain and update  the 

map through its ESRI licenses. KKC (in association with enCode‐360, LLC staff) is available on an 

hourly rate basis to act as the administrator, on behalf of the client, to set‐up the online map and its 

user  interface,  and  to  add  the  functionality  to  link  the  individual  zoning  districts  with  their 

corresponding standards. 

 

99



 

Exhibit “B” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT “B” 

ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS 

HAYS, KANSAS 

 
SUPPORT SERVICES OF CITY 

 

The City of Hays, Kansas will provide administrative and technical support services to assist the 

CONSULTANT  in  performing  the  Scope  of  Services  described  in  Exhibit  “A.”  The  support 

services  to  be  provided  by  the City will  include  the  following  types  of  general  services  and 

specific tasks for the work program: 

 Identify a single individual as the City’s Project Director, who will serve as a primary point 

of contact and source of day‐to‐day work program direction for this collaborative planning 

effort involving both City and CONSULTANT personnel, resources and capabilities. 

 Provide all relevant background information, City documents and other materials that are 

available  to  the  City  in  digital  or  printed  format  and  are  pertinent  and  necessary  for 

successful completion of the work program. Prompt compilation and delivery of such resource 

materials  to  the  CONSULTANT  is  an  essential  prerequisite  for  initiation  of  work  and  timely 

progress  on  various  initial  study  tasks.  Wherever  possible,  the  City  will  reproduce  the 

materials such that they will not require return upon project completion. 

 Ensure  that  key  City  personnel,  appointed  board/commission  members  and  elected 

officials will participate as needed  in  the process and be available, upon request  through 

arrangements made by the City’s Project Director, to provide information and referrals and 

offer opinions,  insights and  suggestions as  input  to  the work program. This will  include 

potential formal or informal meetings and briefings with the City Commission as specified 

in Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services. This will also include necessary coordination with other 

consultants and professional services providers engaged by the City in areas relevant to the 

work program  (e.g.,  engineering,  legal).  In particular,  the City Attorney will provide  all 

legal review and support on behalf of the City, subject to the provisions of Exhibit A, Scope 

of Services of Consultant. The City Attorney or designee, if KKC requests, will attend, when 

needed for legal consultation, on behalf of the City, joint workshops and public hearings, or 

regularly  scheduled  Hays  Area  Planning  Commission  and  City  Commission  meetings 

where final deliberations on new or amended regulatory provisions are expected. 

 Assist the CONSULTANT  in establishing contacts with other agencies and organizations, 

as needed,  for  information  gathering  and  coordination  purposes,  except  where  the 

CONSULTANT  is  already  known  to  and  has  communicated  with  an  agency  or 

organization through previous projects. Based on our experience, it is helpful for City staff 

to make such entities aware of the project and provide a “heads up” in advance of potential 

CONSULTANT contacts so the agency or organization recognizes that the CONSULTANT 

is engaged in a City‐sponsored project that will benefit from their input and support. 

 Arrange  for  coordination  between  the City’s Project Director,  representative(s)  from  the 

appropriate  City  department(s)  and/or  other  consultants,  and  the  CONSULTANT  to 

transfer  any  relevant  spatial data  and mapping  that  the City  can make  available  for  the 

project,  including  Geographic  Information  System  (GIS)  data  sets  and  coverages 

100



 

Exhibit “B” to Professional Services Agreement (03.18.14)  Page 2 of 2 

(or AutoCAD layers, as useful and appropriate) already developed/maintained by the City 

for its entire planning area or readily available to the City from other sources. 

 Reproduce  and  forward  each draft project deliverable  submitted by  the CONSULTANT 

(via email)  to  the Hays Area  Planning Commission,  key City  staff members,  and  other 

project  participants  as  appropriate.  In  addition,  each  draft  deliverable  should  also  be 

provided  to  the  City  Commission  for  courtesy  review  and  discussion  as  the  project 

proceeds. City  staff will be  responsible  for providing  status  reports  and briefings  to  the 

City  Commission  at  regular  intervals  throughout  the  process,  in addition  to  any 

CONSULTANT briefings specified in Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services. 

 Conduct public  information activities  in conjunction with major public meetings/hearings 

and other fitting project milestones. The City will be responsible for news media contacts, 

preparation and distribution of news releases and any other public information materials, 

and posting of meeting notices and project information and updates on the City’s website. 

The  City  will  also  be  responsible  for  inviting  members  of  relevant  City  boards  and 

commissions  and  representatives of other key  agencies  and  community organizations  to 

attend public meetings as appropriate. 

 Provide  administrative  support  for meetings with  the Hays Area Planning Commission 

and/or  City  Commission.  The  City’s  support  services  will  include  reproducing  any 

handouts prepared by the CONSULTANT and providing adequate setup for presentations 

(PowerPoint projector,  screen or white wall,  extension  cords and power  strips  for  three‐

prong plugs, reduced lighting, sound system, easels, flip pad and markers, etc.). 

 Arrange and provide use of public meeting facilities for each scheduled public involvement 

event/activity  identified  in  Exhibit  “A,”  Scope  of  Services.  This will  include  providing 

adequate  setup  for  presentations  (PowerPoint  projector,  screen  or white wall,  extension 

cords and power strips for three‐prong plugs, reduced lighting, sound system, easels, flip 

pad and markers, etc.); providing public and news media notification of public meetings; 

reproducing  agendas  and  other  handout  materials  prepared  by  the  CONSULTANT; 

providing  sign‐in  sheets  so  meeting  attendance  can  be  documented;  and  providing 

refreshments  as  needed.  The  CONSULTANT will  be  responsible  for  presentations  and 

preparation  of  necessary  graphic  aids  for  all  meetings  to  be  facilitated  by  the 

CONSULTANT. The City will  also be  responsible  for  inviting members of  relevant City 

boards  and  commissions  and  representatives  of  other  key  agencies  and  community 

organizations to attend public meetings as appropriate. 

 Consider  and  act  on  all  deliverables  and  other  interim  work  items  submitted  by  the 

CONSULTANT  that  require  City  review,  comments  or  approval  within  a  reasonable 

period  of  time  so  as  to  enable  the  CONSULTANT  to  complete  the work  on  schedule. 

Specific  timeframes  for  such City  response will be  incorporated  into  the detailed project 

schedule  cited  in  Exhibit  “A,”  Scope  of  Services.  Any  delays  encountered  by  the 

CONSULTANT  during  the  project,  which  are  beyond  the  CONSULTANT’s  control,  will  be 

documented in the monthly progress reports and may delay the delivery of work products and/or the 

original anticipated completion date of the project. 

 Provide  the  CONSULTANT written  summaries,  and  copies  of  any  handouts/materials, 

from  all  City  meetings  that  are  relevant  to  the  project  but  not  attended  by  the 

CONSULTANT. 

101



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

e

 

T

e

o

enCode‐90 Softw

This Software

enCode‐360, L

of the State of

1. Licen

4, bel

no  rig

Agree

Licen

2. Softw

softw

3. Exclu

360 so

4. Term

a. Th

in

A

au

be

b. E

te

th

an

c. E

no

te

cu

br

d. L

(i

op

are License  

e License  (“A

LLC, a Texas 

f Kansas (“Lic

nse Grant.  Th

ow. Licensor 

ght  to  sublice

ement  includ

see. All other

ware Covered

ware: enCode‐9

usions. The en

oftware versio

 of License. 

he term of th

n Article V, T

Agreement  fo

utomatically 

elow. 

ither  party  m

ermination de

he Licensee to

ny, shall be re

ither party m

otice  of  term

ermination, p

ures  the brea

reach within 

icensor may t

ncluding  sof

perate) make 

L

Agreement” o

Limited Liab

censee”), by a

his is an Agre

grants licens

ense,  to  use 

ing payment

r rights are res

d by this Lice

90. 

nCode‐90 feat

ons.  Such fea

is Agreement

Time of Perfo

or  the  Review

renewable an

may  termina

elivered at lea

o terminate th

eturned to the

may terminate

mination  to  th

provided, how

ach within  30

said time per

terminate thi

ftware  platfor

Licensor’s pe

P

en

Softw

LICENSEE

r “License”) 

bility Compan

and through T

ement betwee

see a non‐tran

the  software

 of all applic

served to Lice

nse. The term

ture set exclud

atures may be

t is the period

ormance, Par

w  and  Re‐w

nnually therea

ate  this  Licen

ast 30 days pr

his Agreemen

e Licensee on 

e this license i

he  breaching

wever, no  suc

0 days of  the 

riod, commen

s License if, i

rms, web  bro

erformance of

Page 1 of 12

nCode‐90 

ware Licens

 

: HAYS, KA

is made as o

ny (“Licensor

Toby Dougher

en Licensor a

nsferable, non

e  covered  by 

cable License 

ensor. 

ms of this Agr

des the upgra

e added at any

d from the eff

agraph  5.2, o

write  of  the 

after, unless t

nse  by  prov

rior to the da

nt, fees for su

a pro rata ba

in the event o

g  party  at  le

ch  terminatio

termination 

nces cure and 

in Licensor’s 

owsers,  and 

f this Agreem

se 

ANSAS 

of  the date of

r”), and the C

rty, City Man

and Licensee, 

n‐exclusive, l

this Agreem

Fees.   This L

reement appl

ade features a

y time for the

fective date u

of  the  separa

Zoning  and

terminated as

viding  the  ot

ate of termina

uch maintenan

asis.    

of a material b

east  30  days 

on  shall becom

notice or,  if 

diligently pu

sole discretio

other  techno

ment technical

1415 High

f  the  last  sign

City of Hays, K

nager. 

with a term a

limited, non‐a

ment  pursuan

License gives

ly to Licensee

available for t

e then current

until the expir

tely  executed

d  Subdivision

s provided in

ther  party  w

ation. Upon r

nce and supp

breach by the

prior  to  the

me effective 

it  is not pos

ursues the sam

on, changes in

ologies  that 

lly infeasible.

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

nature below

Kansas, a mu

as set out in P

assignable lic

nt  to  the  term

s only certain

e’s use of the 

the enCode‐18

t price. 

ration of time 

d Professiona

n  Regulation

n Paragraph 4

with  written 

eceipt of any

port paid in a

e other party 

e  effective  da

if  the breach

ssible  to  fully

me to conclusi

n Internet tec

allow  the  So

 

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

w, between 

unicipality 

Paragraph 

cense with 

ms  of  this 

n  rights  to 

following 

80 and 

as set out 

al Services 

ns,  and  is 

4.b. or 4.c., 

notice  of 

 notice by 

advance, if 

by giving 

ate  of  the 

hing party 

y  cure  the 

ion. 

chnologies 

oftware  to 

102



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

e. U

to

p

an

d

L

co

st

5. Build

the  fe

Profes

6. Licen

follow

a. Y

es

C

A

b. S

an

fo

re

c. In

cu

te

L

d. Th

fe

7. Scope

public

Licen

protec

use th

a. En

am

are License  

Upon terminat

o  Licensee.  L

rotected main

nd Adobe PD

ocument  at  a

icensor’s  then

ontent into ot

tate media. 

d Fees. The fe

ee  set  out  in 

ssional Servic

nse Fees. The 

ws: 

Year 1: The am

scrow fee, and

Compensation

Agreement for

ubsequent y

nnual license 

or comparable

egarding the a

n the event th

urrent  term, L

erminates  the

icensee shall 

he annual esc

ee. 

e  of  License 

cation service

see.  Licensor

cted access to

he Software th

nCode‐90 ma

mend, repeal,

tion of this Ag

Licensee  has 

ntenance mod

DF. Also, as s

any  time  in H

n‐current  tec

ther file forma

e to build, de

Article VI, C

ces Agreemen

annual licens

mount of $5,0

d $250 softwa

n  to  Consult

r the Review a

years: Upon  t

fee for subse

e enCode‐90 i

amount of the

his Agreemen

Licensee shal

e  Agreement 

not receive an

crow fee paym

/  Use  of  So

e that uses co

r will  provid

o maintenanc

hrough its Int

ay be used to

, and solicit, a

P

greement, Lic

full,  unlimite

dule. This acc

set out  in Par

HTML  forma

chnical  suppo

ats and delive

eliver, and tra

Compensatio

nt for the Rev

se and softwa

75 (including

are escrow in

tant,  Paragra

and Re‐write 

the  terminatio

equent years w

implementati

e annual licen

nt is terminate

ll receive a p

with  less  th

ny refund of a

ment set forth

oftware.  The 

ontent created

de  Licensee  a

e features, as

ternet‐based i

o develop, vie

and process c

Page 2 of 12

censor is not o

ed  access  to 

cess allows th

ragraph 14, S

at  or  as  a we

ort  rates,  Lice

er them to Lic

ain the City on

on  to Consult

iew and Re‐w

are escrow fee

g the 14‐mont

nitiation fee) is

aph  6.1,  of  t

of the Zoning

on of  time  se

will be the sta

ions. EnCode‐

nse fee for sub

ed by License

pro‐rated refu

han  six  (6) m

any fees.  

h in Paragrap

Software  is 

d by Licensee

access  to  the 

s may be appl

interfaces as f

ew, access, us

omments on

obligated to r

the  enCode‐

he City to exp

Security and B

eb  archive  fi

ensor may  o

censee electro

n the mainten

tant,  Paragra

write of the Zo

es, payable up

th prorated li

s included as

the  separate

g and Subdiv

et out  in Para

andard licens

‐360, LLC wil

bsequent licen

ee with six (6

und of  the rem

months  rema

ph 17 is due a

an  Internet‐

e, or by Licen

Internet‐base

licable to the 

follows: 

se, print, cop

the zoning an

1415 High

return License

‐90  content  t

port the cont

Backup,  the L

le.  For  an  ad

offer  export  s

onically or on

nance module

aph  6.1,  of  th

oning and Su

pon execution

icense fee of $

s part of the fe

ly  executed 

vision Regulat

agraph 4.a., T

se fee that enC

ll notify the C

nse years. 

) months or m

maining  fee. 

aining  on  the

and payable w

‐based  inform

nsor under sep

ed  interfaces,

enCode‐90 S

y, edit, publi

nd subdivisio

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

ee’s enCode‐9

through  its  p

tent to Micros

Licensee may

dditional  fee 

services  to  co

n optical or ot

e is included 

he  separately 

ubdivision Reg

n of this Licen

$4,075, a $750

ee set out in A

Professional

tions. 

Term  and Lic

Code‐360, LL

City 30 days in

more remaini

  In  the event

e  term  of  the

with the annu

mation  proces

parate agreem

,  including  p

Software. Lice

ish, utilize, ad

on regulations

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

90 content 

password‐

soft Word 

y save  the 

based  on 

onvert  the 

ther solid‐

as part of 

  executed 

gulations. 

nse, are as 

0 software 

Article VI, 

l  Services 

cense,  the 

C charges 

n advance 

ing on the 

t Licensee 

e  License, 

ual license 

ssing  and 

ment with 

password‐

ensee may 

dminister, 

s; and 

103



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

b. O

8. Limit

a. R

d

b. Pu

ar

c. A

In

co

d. A

or

e. C

So

ot

f. U

ag

in

ap

9. Warra

by Lic

Softw

pertai

again

to  ind

claim

Licen

copyr

Softw

contin

provi

softw

or  rep

Licen

year i

are License  

Other uses as p

tations on Us

Reverse engine

erive source c

ublish or dist

re outside of t

Access the serv

nternet‐based

ode that the s

Alter the funct

r services; 

Copy,  reprodu

oftware or an

ther than as e

Use, or permit 

grees  that  it 

ncluding, but 

pplication ser

anty Against

censor or is d

ware, and that

ining  to  the S

st it or its cus

demnify, hold

s that may be

se.    Licensee

right  infringe

ware  infringes

nue using the

de  the  same 

ware that conti

placement  can

sor may term

in which the i

prescribed by

e of Software

eer, reverse a

code from the

tribute materi

the scope of t

ver‐side prog

d  interfaces pr

erver‐side pr

tionality of th

uce, modify, 

ny componen

expressly agre

the use of, th

shall  not pro

not  limited  t

rvice provider

 Infringemen

distributed by

t there are no

Software. Lic

stomers for pa

d harmless, an

e brought aga

e  shall  have  t

ement  at  Lice

s  on  any pate

e Software; (b

functionality

inues to prov

nnot be acco

minate this Lic

infringement 

P

y this or subse

e.  Licensee m

assemble, dec

e Software or 

ials for which

this License;

grams and sou

rovided by L

ograms gener

he software in

sell,  lease,  su

nt thereof (inc

eed to in this 

he Software ex

ovide  access 

to, any servic

r arrangemen

nt.  Licensor 

y Licensor un

o pending lien

ensor agrees 

atent or copyr

nd defend Li

ainst Licensee

the  right  to  p

ensee’s  cost 

ent  or  copyri

b) modify the

y  as  the  orig

vide the same

omplished  in 

cense and refu

was determin

Page 3 of 12

equent agreem

must not: 

compile or dis

any compone

h Licensee doe

urce code upo

Licensor, and 

rate and deliv

ncluding by c

ub‐license, m

cluding the fu

Agreement; a

xcept within t

to  or perform

ce bureau,  tim

nt, or any othe

warrants that

nder a valid c

ns, claims, or 

to notify Lic

right infringe

icensee again

e as the resul

participate  in

and  expense

ight, Licensor

e Software so 

ginal  Software

e functionality

a manner  th

und to Licens

ned. 

ments betwee

sassemble the

ent thereof; 

es not have in

on which the 

except for  th

ver to end‐use

composition o

market,  or  com

urther distrib

and 

the scope set 

m  services  fo

me‐sharing,  l

er arrangeme

t the copyrig

current license

 encumbranc

censee of any

ement in the u

nst any and a

t of its use of

n  the  defense

e.    In  the  ev

r may  (a) pro

that it becom

e;  (c)  replace

y as the origi

hat  continues 

see its pro‐rat

1415 High

en Licensor an

e Software, o

ntellectual pro

Software is b

he HTML and

ers;  

or injection of

mmercially  e

bution or blan

out in Paragr

or  third parti

lease, distribu

ent. 

ght in and to 

e, that it has 

ces against th

y actual or an

use of the Soft

ll patent or c

f the Software

e  of  any  such

vent  that  it  is

ocure  for  the

mes non‐infrin

e  the  softwar

inal Software

to provide  t

ted license fee

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

nd Licensee.

or otherwise a

operty rights,

based, except 

d browser‐ba

f unapproved

xploit  in  any

nk forms or t

raph 7, above

ies using  the

ution or re‐sa

the Software 

the right to l

e Software or

nticipated clai

tware.  Licens

copyright  infr

e as authorize

h  claims  for 

s  determined

e Licensee  th

nging but con

re with  non‐i

e; or (d) if mo

the  same  fun

e for the bala

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

attempt to 

, or which 

to use the 

ased script 

d software 

y way  the 

templates) 

e. Licensee 

  Software 

ale, rental, 

is owned 

icense the 

r Licensor 

ims made 

sor agrees 

ringement 

ed by this 

patent  or 

d  that  the 

he  right  to 

ntinues to 

infringing 

odification 

ctionality, 

ance of the 

104



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

10. Limit

Softw

admin

11. Techn

a. L

te

d

cu

p

b. L

se

bu

d

c. W

co

L

re

w

ot

d. Fa

11

12. Annu

a. Th

m

re

 

 

 

b. If

fo

are License  

tations of Sof

ware is not a su

nistrative rule

nical Support

icensor will p

ermination of

ay after the t

ustomization 

rofessional fe

icensor agree

ervice  to  Lice

usiness hours

eem a reques

With  respect  t

ommence  its 

icensee. Gene

easonably  pra

which will be r

ther charge fo

ailure of Lice

1.c. shall not c

ual License Fe

here will be r

module and th

esult of chang

If a major s

license fee 

If a major 

annual lice

If a major 

annual lice

f  a major  serv

ollowing licen

ftware. The S

ubstitute for h

es. 

t. 

provide techn

time set out 

termination o

fees are subj

ees for the yea

es to provide 

ensee  within

s, or at a mutu

t as unresolva

to  addressing

best  efforts 

erally, Licens

acticable, wil

required to re

or addressing

ensor  to achie

constitute a m

ee Discounts 

reductions in

he maintenan

ges to the Soft

service interr

for the follow

service  inter

ense fee for th

service  inter

ense fee for th

vice  interrup

nse year shall 

P

oftware is pro

human judgm

nical support a

in Paragraph

of time set out

ject  to annua

ar in which th

telephone or 

n  four  hours

ually agreeab

able. 

g  errors whic

to  resolve  s

sor will comm

ll  provide  Lic

esolve the err

g or correcting

eve  the  techn

material breac

for Major Se

n the annual li

nce module (h

tware made b

uption lasts m

wing license y

ruption  lasts 

he following l

rruption  lasts

he following l

tion  lasts mo

be waived. 

Page 4 of 12

ovided to fac

ment, which is

and customiz

h 4.a., Term an

t in Paragrap

l adjustment,

he support occ

web‐based te

of  initial  tel

ble time. Dura

ch may  arise 

such  errors  a

mence error r

censee with 

ror. Licensee s

g errors in the

nical support 

ch of this Agre

ervice Interru

icense fee if t

hereinafter “m

by Licensor, a

more than two

year will be re

more  than  fi

license year w

s more  than 1

license year w

ore  than  30  c

cilitate access 

s necessary fo

zation service

nd License. F

ph 4.a., Term

, and will be 

curs.  

echnical supp

lephone  cont

ation to resolu

in  the  enCo

as  soon  as  re

resolution on 

Licensor’s  be

shall not be c

e enCode‐90 s

response  tim

eement. 

uptions Due t

there is a com

major service 

as follows: 

o, but less tha

educed by 10 

ive days, but

will be reduce

14 days, but 

will be reduce

consecutive d

1415 High

to informatio

or administra

es at a rate of 

For the license

and License,

based on  the

port regarding

tact  by  Licen

ution is not bo

ode‐90  softwa

easonably  po

n  the same da

est  good‐faith

charged any te

software itself

mes set out  in

to Changes b

mplete inabili

interruption

an five consec

percent. 

t  less  than 14

ed by 25 perce

less  than 30 

ed by 50 perce

days,  the  ann

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

on via the Inte

ation of ordin

$135 per hou

e year comme

 technical sup

e standard sc

g the use of e

nsee  during  L

ound and lice

are, Licensor 

ossible  after 

ay as  the noti

h  estimate  of

echnical supp

f. 

n Paragraphs

y Licensor. 

ty to use both

”) of the Soft

cutive days, t

4 consecutive 

ent. 

consecutive 

ent. 

nual  license  fe

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

ernet. The 

ances and 

r until the 

encing the 

pport and 

chedule of 

enCode‐90 

Licensor’s 

ensor may 

agrees  to 

notice  by 

ice, and  if 

f  the  time 

port fee or 

11.b. and 

h the user 

tware as a 

the annual 

days,  the 

days,  the 

ee  for  the 

105



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

c. Th

on

lo

d. Th

Se

e. If

fi

se

w

ne

gu

13. Upda

a. L

p

th

w

Se

ac

15

b. L

L

u

se

c. L

ti

Su

of

fu

fe

re

fe

u

d. Th

th

su

are License  

he reductions

ne  service  in

ongest of the s

his Paragraph

ervice Provid

f a failure by 

ve consecutiv

election of a n

will seek quali

ew instances 

uarantee for s

ates and Upgr

icensor will k

arty  Internet 

heir reputatio

will promptly 

ervice Provid

ccess to the S

5 minutes per

icensor may, 

icensee withi

pdates which

ecurity or enh

icensor may 

me and will 

uch major up

ffered  at  no 

unctional chan

ee (which may

eleased. The L

eatures  requi

pgrade, Licen

he Software r

he Software is

upported by 

s of license fe

nterruption  o

service interru

h does not a

der that hosts 

a third‐party

ve days, Licen

new  Internet 

ity providers 

in a short tim

storage uptim

rades. 

keep  the Soft

Service Prov

on for reliabili

notify  the Li

der or third‐pa

Software for a

r day. 

at  its sole op

in  two busine

h ensure com

hance system 

develop majo

provide notic

pgrades that a

additional  c

nges, such as

y include an 

Licensee may

ring  an  addi

nsee’s softwar

requires the u

s fully operab

the current a

P

ees that are p

ccurs  during

uptions shall 

apply  to outa

the Software.

y Internet Ser

nsor will seek

Service Prov

with secure 

me frame, and

me or a strong

tware  in oper

vider. Althou

ity and servic

icensor’s con

arty hosting s

a period in ex

ption, apply m

ess days of a

mpatibility wit

stability or op

or upgrades t

ce to Licensee

affect data sec

cost  during  t

s new or custo

additional an

y choose to ac

itional  fee.  If

re version wil

use of an Inter

ble using Micr

and one previ

Page 5 of 12

provided by t

g  a  license  ye

be applied. 

ges  that are 

. 

rvice Provider

k another Inte

vider will be 

data centers, 

d excluding p

g track‐record

rational cond

ugh Licensor

ce, Licensor d

ntact  listed  in 

service experi

xcess of 15 mi

minor update

applying mino

th server or b

perability of t

to the functio

e within two 

curity, system

the  term  of 

omized featur

nnual license f

cept or deny 

f  Licensee  de

ll be maintain

rnet browser.

rosoft Interne

ious major ve

this Paragrap

ear,  then  onl

attributable  t

r impacts the

ernet Service

in Licensor’s

 geographic r

planned down

d of service rel

dition on a ser

selects  its  In

does not guar

n Paragraph 2

iences an out

inutes per da

es  from  time 

or updates. G

browser techn

the software.

onality or inte

business day

m compatibilit

this  Agreem

res, may be o

fee) to be det

major upgrad

eclines  new  o

ned intact thro

 As of the eff

et Explorer (IE

ersion. On an

1415 High

ph are not cum

ly  the  discou

to  failures of 

e use of the S

e Provider to 

s sole discreti

redundancy, 

ntime, either 

liability. 

rver hosted b

nternet  Servic

antee 100 per

24 by electron

tage that prev

ay or cumulat

  to  time and 

Generally, mi

nologies or p

erfaces of the 

ys before app

ty or stability

ment.  Major  u

offered to Lice

termined by L

des that invo

or  customize

ough the licen

fective date of

E) 10 and 11. 

n additional f

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

mulative. If m

unt  that  appl

f a  third‐party

Software for m

host the Softw

ion, however

the ability to

99.9 percent 

by Licensor o

ce  Providers 

rcent uptime.

nic mail  if  it’

vents or sever

tive period in

will provide

inor updates 

provide additi

software fro

plying major u

y, or operabili

upgrades  tha

ensee for an a

Licensor when

lve new or cu

ed  features  o

nse term. 

f this Softwar

The browser 

ee basis, Lice

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

more than 

ies  to  the 

y  Internet 

more than 

ware. The 

r, Licensor 

o bring up 

or greater 

or a  third‐

based  on 

  Licensor 

’s  Internet 

rely limits 

n excess of 

e notice  to 

are  those 

ional data 

m time to 

upgrades. 

ity will be 

at  include 

additional 

n they are 

ustomized 

of  a major 

re License, 

version is 

ensee may 

106



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

in

p

in

be

e. L

co

se

no

14. Secur

a. L

L

cr

L

u

u

re

al

L

ot

d

b. L

co

36

ar

15. Owne

a. Lic

acc

an

au

eff

b. Lic

dis

con

ma

are License  

nclude a rider

rovided  for 

nclude  FireFo

ecause brows

icensor may 

omponent of 

ervice quality

ot negatively 

rity and Back

icensor provi

icensee to add

reate usernam

icensee  is  r

se. Licensee m

sername whi

esponsible for

ll usage or ac

icensee’s use

therwise  illeg

iscretion, and

icensee  is  ad

omplete  vers

60.com/regs/h

rchive file. 

ership of Con

censee  is  the

cessed by Lic

y  interest  in 

thorize other

fect. 

censor may p

sclaim:  (1)  an

ntents; and (3

ay be accessib

r  to  this Agre

in  this  Agre

ox, Chrome,  a

ser technology

from time to 

the Software 

y, error correc

impair the ov

kup.  

ides password

d, format, edi

mes and pass

responsible  f

may not selec

ch is in the so

r maintaining

ctivity on Lic

r names, and

gal  activity m

d Licensor ma

dvised  to ma

sion  of  the 

hays/maintain

ntent. 

e  sole  owner 

censee and oth

said docume

rs to use the d

post “terms o

ny  interest  o

3) any damag

ble through Li

P

eement  to ma

eement.  Othe

and  Safari. L

y changes fro

time, in its s

or make any

ction or to ma

verall functio

d‐level securi

it, or delete te

words  for Li

for  the  secu

ct a username

ole opinion of

g the confiden

censee’s acco

d Licensee’s p

may be groun

ay refer Licen

aintain  a  curr

published  co

n/allcodepub.

of  all  docum

hers through 

ents  and  info

documents an

f service” on 

f  Licensor  in

ges that may 

icensee’s cont

Page 6 of 12

aintain  the op

er  browsers  s

Licensor does

om time to tim

ole discretion

y modification

aintain the res

onality of the S

ity to the mai

ext, upload an

censee’s staff

uring  of  pa

e which  is  id

f Licensor off

ntiality of the

unt,  includin

passwords by

nds  for  termi

see to approp

rent  off‐line 

ode  docume

.asp.  This  do

ments  and  in

use of the So

ormation  and

nd informatio

web pages t

n  Licensee’s  c

occur due to

tent. 

perability of 

supported  by

s not  guarant

me. 

n, change som

n for the purp

sponsiveness 

Software. 

intenance mo

nd link to gra

f, and review

asswords  and

dentical  to  tha

fensive or ina

eir passwords

ng but not  lim

y any  third p

ination of Lic

priate law enf

backup  of  th

ent  is  availab

ocument may

nformation  p

oftware.  Noth

d  the Licensee

on regardless 

that are used 

contents;  (2) 

o malware, vi

1415 High

previous ver

y  enCode‐90

tee  full  opera

me or all of th

pose of impro

of the Softwa

odule of the S

aphics and mu

w and respond

d  preventing

at used by an

ppropriate.  L

s.  Licensee is

mited  to use 

party.   Any  f

censee’s  acco

forcement age

he  data  store

ble  at:  http:/

y  be  saved  a

provided  by 

hing in this L

e has  the  sol

 of whether t

to access the

any  liability

iruses, or oth

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

rsions other  t

0  for  desktop

ability  in  all 

he functional

oving the perf

are. Such chan

Software, whi

ultimedia com

d  to public c

g  their  una

nother person

Licensee shall

s solely respo

of Licensee’s

fraudulent, ab

unt,  in Licen

encies. 

ed  in  the  So

//www.online

s  an HTML 

Licensee  tha

License grants

le  rights  to u

this License r

e Software, w

y  for  use  of  L

her malicious 

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

than  those 

p  editions 

browsers, 

ity or any 

formance, 

nges shall 

ich allows 

mponents, 

omments. 

authorized 

n or use a 

l be solely 

onsible for 

s  account, 

busive, or 

nsor’s  sole 

ftware.  A 

e.enCode‐

or  a web 

at  will  be 

s Licensor 

use  and  to 

remains in 

which may 

Licensor’s 

code that 

107



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

c. Lic

ba

wi

pri

16. Intell

other 

functi

other 

17. Softw

escrow

betwe

added

shall 

Licen

opera

sourc

resell,

will p

additi

escrow

18. WAR

DISCL

MERC

19. EXCL

BE FO

LICEN

THE S

LICEN

20. LIMIT

INDE

LIABL

DAM

21. LIMIT

FOR B

UNDE

TORT

are License  

censor will no

sed services, 

ill  be  conside

icing and dist

lectual Prope

proprietary r

ionalities of th

than those sp

ware Escrow. 

w account pu

een Licensor 

d as a benefic

contain  subs

sor is adjudg

ations, then Li

e code release

, license, or s

pay an annua

ional services

w agreement 

RRANTY  DI

LAIMS  ALL 

CHANTABIL

LUSIVE REM

OR LICENSO

NSOR’S ELEC

SOFTWARE,

NSE YEAR. 

TATION  O

EMNIFICATIO

LE  TO  THE 

MAGES FOR A

TATION OF

BODILY INJU

ERSTOOD A

T, IN NEGLIG

ot charge for 

such as autom

ered  a  “majo

tribution of p

rty Rights.  L

rights in and 

he Software. 

pecified in thi

 Licensor ha

ursuant  to  th

and Lincoln‐

iary upon exe

stantially  the 

ged bankrupt,

icensee shall h

ed from the e

sub‐license. In

al escrow fee

s which may 

shall be paya

SCLAIMER. 

EXPRESS  A

LITY AND FIT

MEDY.  LICEN

OR TO REPAI

CTION, TO R

 FROM THE 

OF  DAMAG

ON UNDER 

OTHER  PAR

ANY LOSS OR

F LIABILITY.

URY OR VIO

AND AGREED

GENCE OR O

P

public access

matic notifica

or  upgrade,” 

roceeds. 

Licensor shall

to the Softwa

 Licensee doe

is Agreement

s placed all s

e  terms of an

‐Parry SoftEs

ecution of thi

following  co

, and/or (ii) in

have a non‐ex

escrow in its s

n considerati

e of $750, sub

be required f

able by Licens

  TO  THE

AND  IMPLIE

TNESS FOR A

NSEE’S EXCL

IR OR REPLA

REFUND THE

DATE THE 

GES.    EXC

THIS AGREE

RTY  FOR  SP

R CLAIM BY 

.   EXCEPT A

LATIONS OF

D THAT NEIT

OTHERWISE, 

Page 7 of 12

s to Licensee’

ation of code u

and  Licenso

l retain all ow

are and any c

es not acquire

. 

source code c

n escrow agr

scrow,  Inc.  (th

s Agreement;

onditions wit

n the event of

xclusive, roya

sole discretion

ion of Licens

bject  to fee  i

from the escr

see. 

E  EXTENT

ED  WARRAN

A PARTICUL

LUSIVE REM

ACE THE DE

E LICENSE F

DEFECT IS I

EPT  FOR 

EMENT, NEI

PECIAL,  INCI

EITHER PAR

S PROVIDED

F PARAGRA

THER PARTY

SHALL EXC

’s content. H

updates. If Li

or will  negoti

wnership, title

component th

e any rights, e

constituting a

reement  (the 

he “Escrow A

; provided, ho

th  respect  to

f a catastroph

alty‐free, perp

n, solely for it

sor placing th

increases by 

row company

ALLOWED 

NTIES,  INCL

LAR PURPOS

EDY FOR A 

EFECTIVE PO

FEES PAID FO

IDENTIFIED 

CLAIMS  TH

ITHER LICEN

IDENTAL,  IN

RTY. 

D IN PARAG

APH 22, CONF

Y’S LIABILIT

CEED THE AM

1415 High

However, Lice

icensor devel

iate with  Lic

e, copyright, p

hereof, and all

express or im

and relating t

“Escrow Agr

Agent”)  to w

owever, that 

o  release  of  e

hic loss which

petual, world

ts own busine

he source cod

the Escrow A

y by Licensee 

BY  LAW, 

LUDING  AN

SE. 

BREACH OF

ORTION OF 

OR THE DEF

TO THE EN

HAT  ARE 

NSOR NOR L

NDIRECT, O

GRAPHS 7, 8,

FIDENTIAL 

TY, WHETHE

MOUNT REC

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

nsor may dev

ops such serv

censee with  r

patent, tradem

l content, feat

mplied, in the

to the Softwa

reement”) ent

which License

the Escrow A

escrow  to  Lic

h terminates L

dwide license

ess use and n

de in escrow,

Agent. All ch

as a benefici

LICENSOR 

NY  WARRAN

F WARRANT

THE SYSTEM

ECTIVE POR

ND OF THE C

THE  SUBJ

LICENSEE SH

OR CONSEQU

, AND 9, and

INFORMATI

ER IN CONTR

CEIVED BY LI

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

velop fee‐

vices, they 

respect  to 

mark, and 

tures, and 

Software, 

re  into an 

tered  into 

e  shall be 

Agreement 

censee:  (i) 

Licensor’s 

to use the 

not for any 

, Licensee 

harges  for 

iary to the 

HEREBY 

NTIES  OF 

TY SHALL 

M OR AT 

RTION OF 

CURRENT 

JECT  OF 

HALL BE 

UENTIAL 

d EXCEPT 

ION, IT IS 

RACT, IN 

ICENSOR 

108



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

FROM

PRICE

22. Confi

a. E

an

se

an

co

“c

pu

si

p

p

p

R

In

in

b. N

C

th

th

ob

C

or

th

d

al

C

c. L

R

In

ex

C

d. L

an

is

are License  

M THE LICEN

E STATED H

idential Infor

ach party ack

nd  capabilitie

ervices,  techn

ny  negotiatio

onfidential  t

confidential”)

ursuant to th

imilar confide

revent the di

arty.   Each p

arty  except  f

Records Act.  L

nformation th

nvestigation a

Notwithstandi

Confidential  In

he recipient w

hrough no un

bligation  of 

Confidential In

r (vi) required

he  recipient 

isclosure and

llowing  the 

Confidential In

icensor ackno

Records Act  a

nformation of

xtent,  Licens

Confidential In

icensee agree

nd / or Licens

s substantially

NSEE FOR TH

EREUNDER 

rmation. 

knowledges  t

es  of  the  pa

nical user gui

ons  of  such 

echnical,  fin

)  (collectively

his Agreemen

ential and pro

sclosure and 

party agrees  t

for  the  purpo

Licensee will

hat the Licens

and prosecuti

ing  the  foreg

nformation  to

without an ob

nauthorized a

confidentialit

nformation of

d to be disclo

provides  the

d takes reason

disclosing  pa

nformation sh

owledges that

and  that  Lice

f Licensor sub

ee’s  employe

nformation in

es not  to use,

sor’s Confide

y similar to th

P

HE LICENSE

IS A CONSID

that  confiden

assword‐prote

ide and  train

confidential 

nancial,  and 

y,  “Confiden

nt.   Each party

oprietary info

to protect th

that  it will n

oses  of  this A

l  promptly  re

see becomes a

on of any suc

going,  the  rec

o  the extent  t

ligation of co

act of the recip

ty,  (iv)  indep

f the disclosin

sed pursuant

e  disclosing  p

nable steps av

arty  to  partic

hould the Lice

t Licensee is a

ensee  shall  en

bject to the req

ees,  contracto

n order to ena

, or allow  its 

ential Informa

he Software or

Page 8 of 12

E YEAR IN W

DERATION IN

ntial  informat

ected  mainte

ning materials

information 

business  in

ntial  Informat

y shall use no

ormation, but

e confidentia

ot disclose or

Agreement  o

eport  to  Lice

aware of and 

ch unauthoriz

cipient  of Con

that such Con

onfidentiality,

pient, (iii) rig

pendently  de

ng party, (v) 

t to a requirem

party  with  n

vailable to ma

cipate  in  pro

ensee decide t

a public entity

ndeavor  to m

quirements of

ors,  and  con

able the Licens

employees o

ation to create

r its related d

WHICH THE 

N LIMITING

tion  (includin

enance  modu

s, one‐time b

between  th

nformation  cl

tion”)  may  b

o less than th

t in any event

ality of the Co

r use  the Co

or  as may  be

ensor  any  dis

provide reas

zed use or dis

nfidential  Inf

nfidential  Inf

, (ii) publicly 

ghtfully receiv

eveloped  by 

approved by

ment of a gov

notice  of  suc

aintain the in

oceedings  to 

to do so in its

y subject to th

maintain  the 

f the Kansas O

nsultants  hav

see to exercis

or  independe

te any compu

documentation

1415 High

CAUSE OF A

G EACH PART

ng  trade  secre

ule  accessible

build  fee  stru

he  parties  to 

learly  marke

be  exchanged

he same mean

t not less than

onfidential In

onfidential  Inf

e  required  un

sclosure  of  L

sonable assist

sclosure. 

formation m

formation  is: 

known or be

ved from a th

the  recipien

y the disclosin

vernmental ag

ch  requireme

nformation in

defend  the 

s discretion. 

he requiremen

confidentiali

Open Record

ve  a  need  to 

se its rights un

ent contractor

uter software 

n. 

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

ACTION ARO

TY’S LIABILI

ets,  software 

e  to  Licensee

ctures,  the  co

this  Agreem

ed  and  iden

d  between  th

ns it uses to p

n reasonable 

nformation of

formation of 

nder  the Kan

Licensor’s Co

tance to Licen

ay  use  or dis

  (i) already k

ecomes public

hird party wi

nt  without  u

ng party for d

gency or law 

ent  prior  to 

n confidence, 

confidentiali

nts of the Kan

ity  of  the Co

ds Act and exc

access  such

nder this Agr

rs  to use,  the

or document

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

OSE. THE 

ITY. 

functions 

e,  support 

ontents of 

ment,  and 

ntified  as 

he  parties 

protect its 

means, to 

f the other 

the other 

nsas Open 

onfidential 

nsor in the 

sclose  the 

known by 

cly known 

ithout any 

use  of  the 

disclosure, 

so long as 

any  such 

including 

ity  of  the 

nsas Open 

onfidential 

cept to the 

h  Licensor 

eement. 

e Software 

tation that 

109



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

23. Retur

each 

record

shall b

for  th

the Co

for an

24. Notic

a. G

be

Fi

th

 

To Licenso

Bret C. Kea

enCode‐36

1415 Highw

Sugar Land

Tel: (281) 2

Email: bret

 

With copy t

William G.

William G.

4800 Sugar

Stafford, T

Tel: (281) 3

Fax: (281) 7

Email: harg

b. U

m

fo

 

 

L

m

are License  

rn of Confide

party may  re

ded, which co

be entitled to

he return of C

onfidential In

ny purpose wh

ces. 

Generally. Exce

e sent to the p

irst Class Mai

he United Stat

or 

ast, AICP, Pres

0, LLC 

way 6, Suite A‐

d, TX  77478 

242‐2960 

t@enCode‐360.c

to: 

. Harger, Attor

. Harger & Ass

r Grove Blvd., S

exas 77477 

325‐8009 

715‐4343 fax 

ger@hargerlaw

 

Upgrades,  Mai

maintenance, s

ollowing indiv

Superinten

City Mana

icensee may 

mail notice to L

ential Inform

equest  of  the

ontain any of

o charge a rea

Confidential  I

nformation sh

hatsoever. 

ept as provid

people and ad

il or courier s

tes Mail or co

ident 

‐300 

com 

rney at Law 

sociates, PLLC 

Suite 610 

w.com 

intenance,  Ser

service interr

viduals:  

ndent of the P

ager or design

change  the  i

Licensor. 

P

mation. Upon t

e  other  that  a

f the other’s C

asonable fees 

Information w

hall be destroy

ed in Paragra

ddresses show

service. Such n

ourier service 

rvice  Interrup

uptions, and

Planning, Insp

nee. 

individuals w

Page 9 of 12

the terminatio

all  document

Confidential I

and material

within  thirty 

yed within a 

aph 24.b., not

wn in this Par

notice shall b

properly add

To Licensee

Toby Doughe

City of Hays

PO Box 490 

Hays, KS 6760

Tel: (785) 628‐

Email:  tdough

 

With a copy to:

John T. Bird 

Glassman, Bir

PO Box 727 / 2

Hays, Kansas 

Tel: (785) 625‐

Fax:  (785) 625

Email: jtbird@

 

ptions,  and  P

planned out

pection, and E

who  receive n

on of this Agr

ts,  informatio

Information b

ls charge for 

(30) days of 

reasonable ti

tices delivere

ragraph. Gen

be deemed to 

dressed to the

erty, City Mana

01  

‐7320 

herty@haysusa

: 

rd, Schwartz, &

200 West 13th S

 67601‐0727 

‐6919 

5‐2473 

@haysamerica.c

Planned  Outa

tages shall be

Enforcement D

notice pursua

1415 High

reement for a

on,  data,  and

be returned, p

doing so.  If 

the  terminati

ime thereafter

ed pursuant to

nerally, notice

have been giv

e intended rec

ager 

a.com 

& Park L.L.P. 

St. 

com 

ages.  Notices 

e delivered by

Division; and

ant  to  this Pa

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

any reason wh

d/or  software

provided that

no request is

ion of  this Ag

r and shall no

o this Agreem

es shall be del

ven when dep

cipient. 

regarding  u

y electronic m

d 

aragraph by 

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

hatsoever, 

e  however 

t the party 

s received 

greement, 

ot be used 

ment shall 

livered by 

posited in 

upgrades, 

mail to the 

electronic 

110



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

eenCode‐90 Softw

25. Assig

writte

the te

to the

26. Third

27. No W

shall n

28. Effect

such o

29. Dispu

constr

be res

a. Th

th

au

b. Th

re

(1

p

m

no

an

c. If

ex

d. If

w

la

p

co

30. Integr

subjec

amon

other 

Agree

are License  

gnment.  Licen

en notice to L

erms of this A

e provisions o

d Party Benef

Waiver. The  fa

not constitute

tive Date. Th

other date as 

ute Resolutio

rued in accor

solved in the f

he parties wi

his Agreemen

uthority to se

he disputing 

espond in wr

1)  a  statemen

osition; and (

meet  at  a mut

otice and  the

nd to attempt

f  the  controve

xecutives, the

f  the matter  h

within 90 days

aw.   Venue  fo

arties  consen

ontroversies a

ration.   This 

ct matter  her

ng the parties.

than  those 

ement. 

nsor may  no

icensee no les

Agreement at
of Paragraph 4

iciaries. Ther

ailure of eith

e a waiver of s

he effective d

may be agree

on; Choice of 

dance with th

following ma

ll attempt in 

nt  promptly 

ettle the contro

party shall g

iting within 1

nt  of  the  part

2) the name a

tually  accepta

ereafter as oft

t to resolve th

ersy or  claim

e parties shall

has  not  been

s of the comm

or all actions

nt  to  Ellis Co

arising pursu

Agreement 

reof  and  ther

  There are no

set  forth  in 

P

ot  assign  its  r

ss than 30 day

tempt to rene

4, Term of Lic

re are no third

her party  to e

such right or 

date  shall be  t

ed to by the p

Law and For

he laws of the

anner: 

good faith to

by  negotiatio

oversy. 

give  the othe

10 days after 

ty’s  position 

and title of th

able  time  and

ten as  they re

he dispute. 

m has not bee

 endeavor to 

n  resolved  pu

mencement o

s brought pur

ounty, Kansas

ant to this agr

constitutes  th

reof.    This  A

o agreements

this  Agreem

Page 10 of 12

rights  and  ob

ys prior to ass

egotiate with

cense. 

d‐party benef

exercise or en

provision.  

the date on w

parties and ind

rum. Licensor

e State of Kan

o resolve any 

on  between 

er party writt

receipt of sai

and  a  summ

e executive w

d place withi

easonably de

n  resolved w

settle the disp

ursuant  to  th

f such proced

rsuant  to  this

s,  being  the 

reement. 

he  entire  agr

Agreement  su

, representati

ment  or  the  d

bligations  un

signment. Lic

h the assignee

ficiaries to thi

nforce any  rig

which  the Lic

dicated as “Ef

r and Licensee

nsas.  Any leg

controversy o

senior  execu

ten notice of 

id notice. The

mary  of  the  fa

who will repre

in  20 days o

eem necessary

within 30 day

pute by non‐b

he  aforesaid  n

dure, parties 

s agreement 

exclusive  jur

eement betw

upersedes  all

ions, or warra

documents  an

1415 High

nder  this Agr

censee may th

e, or terminat

s Agreement

ght or provis

censee execut

ffective Date”

e agree that th

gal dispute be

or claim arisin

utives  of  the 

the dispute. 

e notice and r

acts  and  argu

esent the part

of  the date  of

y  to exchang

ys of  the  first 

binding medi

non‐binding 

may bring th

is  in Ellis Co

risdiction  to 

ween  the part

l  previous  ag

anties betwee

nd  agreemen

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

reement with

hereafter cont

te this license

. 

sion of  this A

tes  this Agre

” below. 

his Agreemen

etween the pa

ng out of or r

parties who 

 The other p

response shal

uments  supp

ty. The execut

f  the disputin

e relevant  in

meeting of  t

iation. 

mediation  p

heir claim in 

ounty, Kansa

resolve  said 

ties with  rega

greements  be

en or among t

nts  referred  t

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

hout  prior 

tinue with 

 pursuant 

Agreement 

eement, or 

nt shall be 

arties shall 

relating to 

have  the 

party shall 

ll include:  

porting  its 

tives shall 

ng party’s 

formation 

the  senior 

rocedures 

a court of 

as; and all 

claims  or 

ard  to  the 

etween  or 

the parties 

to  in  this 

111



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

e

 

 

 

 

enCode‐90 Softw

31. Force

of  its 

fire, n

prom

32. Amen

be bin

33. Gene

langu

expre

rule  r

drafte

constr

34. Furth

additi

Agree

35. Sever

invali

thereo

enforc

Agree

shall b

tenor 

36. Indem

“Inde

repres

costs, 

limita

and b

otherw

agent

Agree

are License  

 Majeure.  Li

obligations o

natural disast

ptly upon dis

ndments and

nding on any 

ral Interpreta

uage used  in 

ess  their mutu

requiring  con

ed, or  in  favo

ruction will b

her Assurance

ional docume

ement. 

rability.    If an

id  in whole  o

of  shall  be 

ceability, or v

ement  is stric

be replaced, t

to the stricke

mnity.   Each 

emnitee”),  its

sentatives, co

expenses,  d

ation, attorney

breaches of co

wise  exclusiv

ts  or  contrac

ement. 

icensor shall n

or attempts to

ter, or act of g

scovery there

d Modificatio

of the parties

ation.  The te

this Agreem

ual  intent.   Th

nstruction  ag

or of  the par

be applied aga

es. Each of  th

ents as may b

ny  term or p

or  in  part  fo

stricken  from

validity of  th

cken  in accord

to the extent p

en provision a

Party  (each, 

s  parent,  su

ontractors, em

damages,  clai

ysʹ fees and le

onfidentiality 

vely  arising  i

ctors.  This  o

P

not be deeme

o cure any br

government p

of and uses it

ns.  No amen

s unless it is in

rms of this A

ent  shall be 

his Agreemen

gainst  the  pa

ty  receiving 

ainst any pers

he parties agr

be reasonably

rovision of  th

or  any  reason

m  this  Agre

he  remainder 

dance with  th

possible, with

as is legally po

an “Indemni

ubsidiaries,  a

mployees, suc

ims,  suits,  ac

egal expenses

arising exclu

in  connection

obligation  sh

Page 11 of 12

ed in default o

reach are dela

provided  tha

ts best efforts 

ndment, mod

n writing and

Agreement hav

deemed  to b

nt shall be co

arty  causing 

a particular b

son. 

rees  to  take  s

y required to t

his Agreemen

n,  such  illega

eement,  and 

of  this Agre

he provisions

h a legal, enfo

ossible. 

itor”) shall d

affiliates,  and

ccessors and 

ctions,  liabilit

s, based upon

sively out of 

n with  the  ac

hall  extend  b

of this Agreem

ayed or prev

at Licensor gi

to cure the d

dification, or s

d signed by th

ve been nego

be  the  langua

onstrued with

such  instrum

benefit unde

such  further 

them to effec

nt  is determin

al,  unenforcea

such  provis

eement.    If an

s of  this Para

orceable, and 

efend,  indem

d  their  resp

assigns, harm

ties,  losses  a

n personal inju

Indemnitor’s

cts  or  omissi

beyond  the 

1415 High

ment to the ex

vented by rea

ives Licensee 

delay. 

supplement to

he parties. 

otiated by the

age  chosen by

hout regard  t

ment  or  any 

r  the  agreem

action  to exe

tuate the pur

ned  to be  ille

able,  or  inva

sion  shall  no

ny provision 

agraph,  then 

 valid provisi

mnify and hol

pective  direc

mless  from an

and  judgmen

ury and/or de

s performance

ions  of  Indem

termination 

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

xtent that per

son of any ac

 written notic

o this Agreem

e parties heret

y  the parties 

to any presum

portion  ther

ment.   No  rul

ecute and del

rpose and inte

egal, unenfor

alid  provision

ot  affect  the

or part  there

this stricken 

ion that is as 

ld  the other P

ctors,  officers

nd against an

nts,  including

eath, property

e of this Agre

mnitor,  its  em

or  expiration

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

rformance 

ct of God, 

ce  thereof 

ment shall 

to and the 

hereto  to 

mption or 

reof  to  be 

e of  strict 

liver  such 

ent of this 

rceable, or 

ns  or  part 

e  legality, 

eof of  this 

provision 

similar in 

Party  (the 

s,  agents, 

ny and all 

g,  without 

y damage, 

eement, or 

mployees, 

n  of  this 

112



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

e

 

 

C

L

A

 

A

D

 

enCode‐90 Softw

City of Hays 

Licensee 

Authorized A

Authorized A

Date 

are License  

Agent Signatur

Agent (Typed)

re 

) 

PPage 12 of 12

 

              

  Effective

 

  enCode‐

  Licensor

  Authoriz

  Bret C. K

  Authoriz

  Date 

 

     , 2014 

e Date 

‐360, LLC 

r 

zed Agent Sig

Keast, Preside

zed Agent (Ty

1415 High

gnature 

ent 

yped) 

hway 6 South, S

Sugar Land, Te

Suite A-300 

exas 77478 

02.21.2014 

113



Elk Grove, California | Phoenix, Arozona | Sugar Land, Texas Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsir

Kendig Keast
COLLABORATIVE

POLICY

Review and Re-write of

Zoning and Subdivision Regulations
City of Hays, Kansas

January 10, 2014

I ASSOCIATION WITH

ENCODE-360, LLC

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 11  MEETING DATE: 4-10-14 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
EPA Fine for Exceeding Wastewater Treatment Permit Limits 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Authorize the payment of the fine to the EPA to be paid out of the Water/Sewer Contingency 
account. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
In 2012, discharge at the City of Hays wastewater treatment facility was out of compliance 
with the permit issued by the Kansas Department of Health and Environment.  KDHE was 
notified immediately and staff worked to correct the compliance issue ASAP.  In 2013, the 
Environmental Protection Agency inspected the wastewater facility and noted the permit 
violation.  The EPA determined a fine was in order and initially proposed a fine of $29,000, 
but after negotiation, has issued a fine of $18,000.   
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends paying the $18,000 fine. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
EPA Order 
 
 
 

 
 
 

125



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:   Toby Dougherty, City Manager  
 
Work Session:   April 3, 2014  
 
Subject:  EPA Fine for Exceeding Permit Limitations 
  at Wastewater Treatment Facility  
 
Person(s) Responsible:  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
  John Bird, City Attorney 
 
 

Summary 
In 2012, discharge at the City of Hays wastewater treatment facility was out of 
compliance with the permit issued by the Kansas Department of Health and Environment.  
KDHE was notified immediately and staff worked to correct the compliance issue ASAP.  
In 2013, the Environmental Protection Agency inspected the wastewater facility and 
noted the permit violation.  The EPA determined a fine was in order and initially 
proposed a fine of $29,000, but after negotiation, has issued a fine of $18,000.   
 

Background  
The City of Hays wastewater treatment facility is an older mechanical facility.  Numerous 
modifications have been made to the facility in the past 40 years.  The facility operates 
under a permit issued by KDHE.  Over the years, permit discharge requirements for 
nitrates, ammonia, and phosphates, have become more and more stringent.  Given the age 
and limitations of the treatment facility, it has become more and more difficult to meet 
the ever-tightening standards. 
 
In 2009, the City of Hays agreed to work with KDHE in order to test various processes 
and techniques to lower nitrates, ammonia, and phosphates while still working in the 
same framework.  The goal was to determine what methods were successful in hopes of 
identifying a few best practice examples that could be utilized in older mechanical 
facilities throughout the state of Kansas.  If successful, it could mean that the Hays 
treatment facility, as well as many others throughout the state, could remain viable and 
effective without an expensive replacement.   
 

Discussion 
In 2012, City staff was implementing one of the test processes mentioned above.  The 
process was not successful and ammonia limitations were exceeded for a period of 
several days.  KDHE was immediately notified and staff worked to correct the problem 
ASAP.  In 2013, the EPA decided to inspect the facility.  EPA staff spent several days 
going through records and interviewing staff.  While the impetus for the inspection was 
the ammonia issue, they did find a few small non-compliance issues as well such as 

126



chlorine residual levels that were too low and BOD5’s that were out of compliance.  
These are things that staff was aware of and had already corrected as well as 
implemented preventative measures to present in the future.  This fact did not matter to 
EPA staff and the occurrences were included in the fine justification. 
 
After the investigation, the EPA initially decided to issue a fine of $29,000, but after 
negotiations reduced it to $18,000 for being out of compliance with the terms of the 
Clean Water Act.  Staff cannot dispute their findings and they do have the ability to 
administer fines.  The potential fine is much higher and it is not likely that if the City 
contested the matter that it would have a better result than has been negotiated. 
 
As previously mentioned, the wastewater treatment facility is quite old and complicated 
in nature.  It was designed for a time when discharge requirements were not nearly as 
stringent as they are today.  Staff has been working to keep the facility as viable as 
possible in order to avoid a complete replacement which could cost $35 million.  
However, due to the complicated processes involved, and the experimentation that has 
taken place, we have been out of compliance with our permit limitations.  That being 
said, staff was worked diligently to improve processes and upgrade the facility to help 
prevent occurrences of this nature in the future.  This includes a significant upgrade to the 
SCADA system.   
 
Going forward we will be much more cautious in how we work with KDHE to test new 
processes.  In fact, we may stop altogether as we want to avoid another situation where a 
fine could result.   
 

Legal Consideration 
This matter has been negotiated to the lowest level achievable without litigation and there 
are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 

 

Financial Consideration 
The $18,000 fine will be paid for out of Water/Sewer Contingency. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options: 

 Authorize paying the fine. 
 Challenge the fine in court. 

 

Recommendation 
City staff recommends paying the $18,000 fine. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the payment of the $18,000 fine to the EPA to be paid out of Water/Sewer 
contingency. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
EPA Order 

127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



 

142



  

COMMISSION INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 
TO: City Commission 

FROM: Toby Dougherty, CPM 
 City Manager  

 

DATE: April 4, 2014 

 
 

Attached are the following items: 
  

1. The minutes of the January 14, 2014 and February 13, 2014 meetings of the Sister Cities 
Advisory Board. 
 

2. The minutes of the February 24, 2014 meeting of the Hays Housing Authority Board. 
 

3. The minutes of the February 26, 2014 meeting and March 5, 2014 special meeting of the 
Hays Recreation Commission Board. 

 
4. The Hays Regional Airport enplanement report for 2014. 

 
5. The Great Lakes On-Time Report for March 2014 is attached. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
aw 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 

143



 

144



Hays Sister Cities Advisory Board 
        Tuesday January 14, 2014 – Noon  

Smoky Hill Conference Room 
FHSU Memorial Union 

 
 
Call to Order –Meeting was called to order at 12:05 pm at the Smoky Hill Room at the 
FHSU Memorial Union by Ann Leiker.  

 
Members Present:  Ann Leiker, Greg Sund, Max Maximov. Mehran Shahidi, Dawne 
Leiker, Patricia Levy and Carol Solko-Olliff    

 
Guest(s):  Mayor Kent Steward, Olga Detrixhe and Corrie Zimmerman 
 
Minutes:  Carol S. presented the minutes from the December 11, 2013 meeting.  It was 
moved by Greg S. and seconded by Dawne L. to accept the minutes.  Minutes were 
approved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report:   Ann L. received an update on the financial report from Armando 
O. and reported that the Sister Cities dues in the amount of $360.00 has been paid.  
Currently there is a balance of approximately $22,000 in the Sister Cities Board 
account. 

 
Agenda  
 
Each member and guest present were asked to introduce themselves and talk about 
their interest in the Sister City Committee.   Ann L. gave some background information 
about Sister Cities to both the new committee members and guests.  She discussed the 
two current Sister Cities and the desire to add another Sister City in the future.  Ann L. 
also talked about the need to create a new and more defined strategic plan for the 
committee.  
 
Ann L. then deferred to Mayor Steward to address the committee on behalf of the City.  
Mayor Steward conveyed he is supportive of the committee and the goal of welcoming 
those of diverse backgrounds into the community.  He encouraged the committee to 
move forward with the strategic planning process, but to not get mired down by it.   The 
commission will look forward to seeing the progress the committee makes. 

 
Sister City Board Composition:   Discussion was held on the current Sister Cities Board 
composition and resignations.   Mayor Steward inquired of Olga D. and Corrie Z. of their 
interest in joining the board.  Each indicated their interest and were encourage to 
complete the committee application on the City website.   It was also mentioned that 
Helen Robson may also be interested in joining the committee.  Since she is from 
China, and one of our current Sister Cities is in China, she would be a welcome 
addition.   
 

145



 
Mayor Steward and Ann L. passed out a flyer talked about the upcoming Trade Mission 
that may take place this year to China.   The trip would be in April and last 
approximately 10 days.  Both encouraged any members who might have an interest to 
let them know.   They are still working on who the delegation may be.   The cost is 
approximately $3,350.   If members of Sister Cities are interested we may be able to 
help with some of the cost.   Applications are due to City Hall by January 31st.   
 
Ann L. thanked everyone for their enthusiasm and support as we move forward with the 
strategic planning process to make our Sister Committee more defined and functional. 
 
The next meeting will be Thursday, February 13, 2014 at noon. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 1:15 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted by:  Carol Solko-Olliff 
 
 
 

146



Hays Sister Cities Advisory Board 
        Thursday  February 13, 2014 – Noon  

Smoky Hill Conference Room 
FHSU Memorial Union 

 
 
Call to Order –Meeting was called to order in Smoky Hill Room at the FHSU Memorial 
Union by Ann Leiker.  

 
Members Present:  Dawne Leiker, Olga Detrixhe, Max Maximov, Mehran Shahidi, 
Corrie Zimmerman, Patricia Levy, Greg Sund, Ann Leiker, Mayor Kent Steward.   
 

 Members Absent: Carol Solko-Olliff    
 

Minutes:  Minutes from the January 14th meeting will be sent out and approved at the 
March 13, 2014 meeting.   
 
Treasurer’s Report:   Ann L. reported the balance after funding a $180.00 Diversity 
Grant to the Chinese Student Association is $22,244.80.   
 
Agenda:  
 
Update from Mayor Steward: only 2 applications have been received for the China 
Sister Cities proposed trip so there will not be a trip in the near future.  Shawn Chen has 
issued us an invitation to come anytime and there was general agreement that a better 
time for community people and FHSU faculty and families might be late in May at the 
conclusion of the academic year.  Shawn C. also suggested that we advertise and get 
the word out ahead of time to allow people to plan for the time and expenses. The 
Advisory Board also hopes that there is enough time before another trip to incorporate 
possible trade-mission discussions.  Olga D. and Patricia L. will be available to work 
with the Committee on planning a trip/trade mission to China.  Greg S. and Mayor 
Steward did suggest that we talk to Ellis County Economic Development Coordinator 
Aaron White very soon. 

Max Maximov has volunteered to follow-up on our Paraguay contacts and help us 
assess where our future partnership with Santa Maria.  It was brought up to go onto You 
Tube to view the video done by Ed Stehno with Marianna Beach.  Ann L. is going to 
follow-up with the status of the Sternberg Museum kiosk that was to be placed in 
memory of Ross Beach in the lobby of the Museum that also explains about the 
sculpture done by as a gift in honor of our Paraguay Partnership located outside and 
visible from I-70.  Ann L. will also inquire about a report on the funds given to Fr. Fred 
for the Hispanic Community to use.  

147



Election of Officers:  The following slate of officers were nomination from the floor (all 
moved and seconded)   All nominated did consent to serve. 

President: Ann Leiker  
Vice President: Mehran Shahidi  
Secretary: Carol Solko-Olliff 
Treasurer:  Dawne Leiker 
The slate of officers was unanimously approved. 
 
Dawne L. will be making contact with Tom Thomas and Armando Orozco to transfer 
Treasurer responsibilities.  Mayor Steward did say that he would be presenting Helen Li 
Ang Robson to the Commissioners at their work session, which would then fill all the 
positions on the Sister Cities Advisory Board. 
Dawne L. volunteered to help keep up the Facebook page that Armando had setup.    

Greg S. emphasized that we need to move forward quickly with the Strategic Plan 
requested by the Hays City Commission.  Olga D., Patricia L., Max M. volunteered to 
help Greg S. with this and he was encouraged to be in contact with them to set-up a 
meeting to work on document.  

Ann L. notified the Board about the upcoming annual Sister City International 
conference in San Jose, California July 31-Aug 2, 2014.  Ann L. also mentioned that we 
now receive a monthly Sister Cities newsletter that she would be forwarding out for all to 
read and help keep up with the Sister Cities current activities.  

There also was discussion about the new direction of the Advisory Board.  There was a 
lot of enthusiasm for moving forward especially with the Hispanic Community.  Corrie Z. 
will be bringing suggestions about potential contacts for interested members of the 
Hispanic Community for potential programs in the future.   

The next meeting will be Thursday, March 13th at 12:00 – noon in the Smoky Hill Room 
at Fort Hays State University. 

Adjourned was adjourned at 1:10pm. 

Respectfully submitted:  Carol Solko-Olliff per notes from Chairperson Ann Leiker.   

 

148



149



150



 

1 

HAYS RECREATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

February 26, 2014 
 

Chair called the meeting to order at 12:05pm. 
Roll Call   
Chair   Jeff Briggs 
Vice-Chair  Lynn Maska 
Secretary  Mark Junk 
Commissioner  Nancy Jeter 
Superintendent Roger Bixenman 
 
Commissioner  Clint Albers was absent.   
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Lynn Maska to approve the agenda.  Second by Nancy Jeter.  Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Motion by Lynn Maska to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for January 
22, 2014.  Second by Mark Junk.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Audience Participation 
Melissa Romme-ABB&B was present to review the financial statement and 
answer any questions concerning the financial statement.    
 
Written Communication 
Written communications were shared with the board.     
 
Finances 
Financial Statement 
Motion by Mark Junk to approve the financial statement for January 2014.  
Second by Nancy Jeter.  Motion carried 4-0.    
 
 Staff Reports 
Sports Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning sports. 
Program Director 
Information concerning all programming was shared with the board.  
Aquatics Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning aquatics. 
Wellness Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning wellness. 
Sports Complex Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning the sports complex.    
 

151



 

2 

Superintendent 
Was consensus of the board to raise room rentals by $5 for the HRC conference 
rooms.  Discussion was held on legislative issues dealing with the Recreation 
Commissions.   Roger discussed that the 2013 Audit report which will be 
presented at the March board meeting.   
 
Unfinished Business 
No Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
Consider Bid for Concrete work for Bickle/Schmidt Sports Complex Maintenance 
Building 
 Motion by Lynn Maska to approve the low concrete bid from T&T with the 
amount not to exceed $5,000.00.  Second by Nancy Jeter.  Motion carried 4-0.    
Consider Resolution Statement 2014 
Motion by Mark Junk to approve the 2014 Resolution Statement.  Second by 
Nancy Jeter.  Motion carried 4-0.   
Consider Legal Services for Expansion Project 
Motion by Lynn Maska to enter into an agreement with Gilmore and Bell to 
provide legal services for the potential HRC expansion project.  Second by Mark 
Junk.  Commissioner Nancy Jeter abstained.  Motion carried 3-0.  
Consider Contract for Cleaning Services 
Motion by Nancy Jeter to approve the contract from Steve Engel for Cleaning 
Services for 2014 and 2015.  Second by Lynn Maska.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
Board Member Reports 
None 
 
Other Action 
None 
 
Executive Session  
None 
   
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Nancy Jeter to adjourn the meeting.  Second by Lynn Maska.  Motion 
carried 4-0.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Roger Bixenman CPRP 
Superintendent 

 
 

152



 

3 

 
HAYS RECREATION COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING 
March 5, 2014 

Noon 
 

Chair called the meeting to order at 12:02pm 
Roll Call   
Chair   Jeff Briggs 
Vice-Chair  Lynn Maska   
Secretary  Mark Junk 
Commissioner  Nancy Jeter 
Commissioner Clint Albers 
Superintendent Roger Bixenman 
 
Meeting was held to discuss whether to continue the Wave route during the 
summer months.   After discussion on different proposals a motion was made.   

 
Motion by Mark Junk to continue operation of the Wave three (3) days a week 
running two (2) times each day determined by staff utilizing HRC transportation 
and staff for operation.   Second by Nancy Jeter motion carried 5-0.   
 
Motion by Nancy Jeter to adjourn.  Second by Lynn Maska motion carried 5-0.   
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Roger Bixenman CPRP 
Superintendent 
  
 

153



 

154



City of Hays 
Public Works Department - Airport Division

FROM:  Airport Manager
RE:  

Month 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Comparison
2013-2014

January 645 562 537 562 655 645 527 -18%

February 573 451 532 551 717 528 367 -30%

March 743 582 681 754 793 841 311 -63%

April 689 583 682 724 726 716 0 -100%

May 772 756 774 943 1050 1043 0 -100%

June 739 594 732 998 687 818 0 -100%

July 726 668 679 984 704 775 -100%

August 690 517 693 945 752 571 -100%

September 625 621 662 858 659 585 -100%

October 721 629 741 786 782 645 -100%

November 593 664 694 814 828 646 -100%

December 696 808 811 981 975 903 -100%

EAS Total 8,212   7,435  8,218  9,900    9,328    8,716  1,205  -86.17%
Other Charters 550       
Charter Total 345      24       802 318       319       328     115     -64.94%
TOTAL 8,557   7,459  9,020  10,218  10,197  9,044  1,320  -11.31%

Commercial pass.
Average/Day 20.4 22.5 27.1 25.6 23.9 13.4

Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec.

38% 39% 20% N/A N/A N/A

62% 61% 80% N/A N/A N/A

**Industry Average for on time (June 2010) -- 76.4%
**On-Time Performance taken from August 2010 issue of Air Travel Consumer Report.

Enplanements

2014 Enplanements

Percentage 
delayed or 
Cancelled 

(wi/30 mins)

On-time 
(wi/15 mins)

2014 On-Time Statistics - Great Lakes (Jan-Mar), SkyWest (July-Dec)

155



Great Lakes Airlines On-Time Report

 
 

Mar-14 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Under 
15 Min  

On-
Time

15-44 
Min 
Late

45-74 
Min 
Late

75 -104 
Min 
Late

105 
Min 
Late 
or 

more Canceled

Mon-Fri
745 C C C L C C x C C C C C C C C C C C C C C 5% 5% 90%

1016 C x C C L C x C L C C C L C C C C C C L C 10% 10% 5% 5% 71%
1026 C x C C L C x C L C C C L C C C C C C L C 10% 14% 5% 71%
1311 C C C x C x L x x x x C C C L C C C C C C 29% 10% 62%
1321 C C C x C x L x x x x C C C L C C C C C C 29% 10% 62%
1425 C C C x C x C x x x x C C C x C x C C C C 38% 62%
1435 C C C x C x C x x x x C C C L C x C C C C 33% 5% 62%
1626 L C x C C C C x C L C C C x C C x C x C C 24% 5% 5% 67%
1636 L C x C C C C x C L C C C x C C x C x C C 24% 10% 67%
2016 C C x C C x C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C 10% 90%

Saturday
745 L C C C C 20% 80%

1250 L C x x C 40% 20% 40%
1300 L C L x C 20% 20% 20% 40%
1406 C L C x C 20% 20% 60%
1416 C L C x C 20% 20% 60%
1931 C x C C C 20% 80%

Sunday
745 C x C C C 20% 80%

1250 C C x L C 20% 20% 60%
1300 C C x L C 20% 20% 60%
1626 C C C C C 100%
1636 C C C C C 100%
2016 C C C C C 100%

Average 20% 6% 2% 0% 1% 71%
No time logged =na
Late=L Total Flights - 270 53 17 5 1 3 191
On Time=x
Canceled=C Percentage of flights delayed or canceled 80%

On time means </= 15 minutes

156


	4-10-14 City Commission Meeting Agenda
	3-27-14 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	City Commission Rules of Procedure
	Mayoral Appointment Recommendations
	Vehicle Abatement - 510 West 23rd
	Vehicle Abatement - 1309 Donald Dr.
	Vehicle Abatement - 1812 East 27th
	Award of Contract for Zoning Regulation Rewrite
	EPA Fine for Exceeding Wastewater Treatment Permit Limits
	Commission Informational Memorandum
	1-14-14 Sister Cities Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
	2-13-14 Sister Cities Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
	2-24-14 Hays Housing Authority Board Meeting Minutes
	2-26-14 Hays Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes
	3-5-14 HRC Special Meeting Minutes 
	Hays Regional Airport Enplanements Report - 2014
	Boardings at the Hays Regional Airport - March, 2014



